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Sales, including:

Laundry & Home Care

Cosmetics/Tolletries

Consumer and Craftsmen Adhesives

Henkel Technologies

Operating profit, Including:

Laundry & Home Care

Cosmetics/Toilstries

Consumer and Craftsmen Adhesives

Henkel Technologies

Earnings before taxes on income

Net earnings

Cash flow from operating activities

Shareholders' equity "

Capital expenditure

Research and development costs

Number of employees (annual average) o 5_9,995"

" including minority interests
2 4ncluding employess of the Cognis and Henkel-Ecolab joint venture businesses sold

Henkel KGaA

Dividend per ordinary share (in euros)

Dividend per preferred share (in suros)

* proposed

Our Vision Our Values

We are customer driven

Henkel is a leader
with brands and
technologies that

We develop superior brands and technologies
We strive for innovation !
We embrace change

We are successful because of our people

We are committed to shareholder value

make people’s lives
easier, better and
more beautiful.

We care about the environment
We are an active partner in our communities

We communicate openly and actively

¥ v¥ Y Y VY Y Y VY VY

We preserve the tradition of an open family company

@ Annual Bepart 2001
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" Preface.

Dear Shareholders,

2001 has béen an extraofdinary year for
Henkei for a number of reasons. We celebrat-
ed our 125th anniversary with theslogan
“focus:future”. To mark the event, our
employees have been engaged in 125 chil-
dren’s projects that received financial sup-
port from the Company, Through their
comrr.litmentrand enthusiasm they have
helped about 10,000 children around-the .
world.

Of special importance in the past year
were two major projects that we completedv
as part of our strategic realignment: the
divestment of our chemicals business Cognis
and the sale of our interest in the Henkel-
Ecolab joint venture. By the end of last year,
Henkel had evolved from a “Specialist in
Applied Chemistry” to a company whose
future rests on two solid pillars: strong
brands and advanced technologies.

With the sale of Cognis to an investor
group we have created positive prospects for
Henkel, Cognis, and for the employees of
Cognis. The imperative of future viability
has also been our guide in selling our inter-
est in Henkel-Ecolab to Ecolab Inc. This move
assures that the growing number of global
customers in the industrial and institution-
al hygiene market have one single-source
partner to serve them throughout the world.
As part of our agreement we have the option
to increase our equity position in Ecolab Inc.
We are already exercising this option and
have increased our shareholding in Ecolab
Inc. to presently 28.4 percent.

We will use the sale proceeds to further
strengthen and expand our strategic core
businesses of brands and technologies.

@ Annual Report 2001

: As part of our strategic realignment we have

structured our portfolio into four business
sectors: in addition to Laundry & Home Care
and Cosmetics/Toiletries, we have estab-
lished Consumer and Craftsmen Adhesives
as a third brand business sector. The fourth
business sector, Henkel Technologies,
includes our industrial systems businesses
of Industrial Adhesives, Engineering Adhe-
sives, and Surface Technologies. This struc-
ture enhances our customer focus, provid-
ing technology competence from one single
source. To give you an idea of the size of our
businesses: Based on the figures of the year
under review, Henkel brand businesses
generate 70 percent, and Henkel technolo-
gies businesses 30 percent of sales.

During the course of 2001, many of our
customer industries such as the electronics,
automotive and construction industries,
experienced significant Weaknesses. These
unexpected declines primarily affected our
industrial businesses. We are pleased to
report, however, that we were able to largely
offset the negative developments in our
industrial businesses through success in our
branded product businesses where we were
able to maintain and even expand our
strong market positions.

In response to the worldwide economic
situation and the lack of positive indicators
we are accelerating the implementation of
planned restructuring measures. The pro-
gram includes a thorough economic and
financial review of all our sites worldwide
and is already expected to achieve positive
results in 2002.

Including all exceptional items resulting
from the sale of Cognis and of our interest
in the Henkel-Ecolab joint venture and from




" Dipl.-Ing. Albrecht Woeste

the special restructuring program and the
exceptional goodwill write-downs, Henkel

achieved net earnings of 541 million euros

in 2001. Excluding these exceptional items, .

nét earnings total:476 million euros, which
' 15 5.7 p‘ercent below the prior yéar.results.
Allin all, 2001 has made us still

stronger, and we see no reason to change
our growth and innovation targets for the
medium term. In pursuing our goals we are
relying on 45,753 well-trained and motivat-
ed employees worldwide. Thanks to their
skills and performance, the company has
been able to be successful in a difficult year,
and we would like to express our apprecia-
tion for their commitment and support. All

of us at Henkel stand behind our new vision

Dipl.-Ing. Albrecht Woeste
Chairman of the Shareholders’

Committee and of the Supervisory Board

Dr. Ulrich Lehner

“Henkel - A Brand like a Friend”. It is a prom-
ise made to our customers: with our strong
brands and advanced technologies, Henkel
makes-people’s lives éasier, bette: and more
beautiful. We thank our customers for their

. trustand loyalty.

We would also like to thank all employ-
ees of Cognis and of Henkel-Ecolab and
extend to them our best wishes for success
in the future. Our appreciation extends to
all business associates with whom we con-
duct business.

Our special thanks go to all shareholders
for their confidence in Henkel. We will
reward their enduring trust with a manage-

ment approach driven by shareholder value.

Dr. Ulrich Lehner
President and Chief Executive Officer
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Dr. Ulrich Lehner

President and Chief Executive Officer,
born May 1, 1946 in Diisseldorf;

with Henkel since 1981 including an

interim break of three years.

Knut Weinke (from January 1, 2002)
Executive Vice President Human Resources
and Logistics,

born February 16, 1943 in Trier;

with Henkel since 1969.
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Dr. Jochen Krautter

Executive Vice President Finance,
born October 24, 1942 in Stuttgart;
with Henkel since 1973.

Dr. Roland Schulz (to December 31, 2001)
Executive Vice President Industrial and
Institutional Hygiene | Surface Technologies /
Human Resources,

born August 4, 1941 in Prague;

with Henkel since 1972.
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Dr. Klaus Morwind
Executive Vice President
Laundry & Home Care,

born june 9, 1943 in Vienna;
with Henkel since 1969.

Alois Linder (from January 1, 2002)
Executive Vice President

Consumer and Craftsmen Adhesives,
born August 4, 1947 in Spittal/Austria;
with Henkel since 1979,

Prof. Dr. Uwe Specht
Executive Vice President
Cosmetics/Toiletries,

born July 21, 1943 in Lorrach;
with Henkel since 1969.

Guido De Keersmaecker

{from January 1, 2002}

Executive Vice President

Henkel Technologies,

born November 3, 1942 in Antwerp;
with Henkel since 1977.
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1In our 125 anniversary year we realigned the Henkel

Group portfolio: from now on we will be concen-
trating On"'brandé‘d pkdeGts an‘d‘ industria'i tech-
nologles |n a dlfflcult economlc enwronment we
mcreased sales to 13.1 bl|||0n euros ‘Net earnmgs,
mcludlng exceptlonal |tems rose by 7.1 percent
to 541 m|II|on euros. On a comparable basis they

Sale of the Cognis chemicals business
and of the stake in Henkel-Ecolab

On November 30, 2001, we sold our chemi-
cals business Cognis to an investor consor-
tium comprising Permira, GS Capital Part-
ners and Schroder Ventures Life Sciences.
The enterprise value was 2.5 billion euros.
This concluded our efforts to find a purchas-
er for Cognis who will continue its success-
ful development and provide Cognis-employ-
ees with viable future prospects. A crucial
factor behind the sale was that it will enable
Cognis to expand its business with interna-
tional manufacturers of detergents, house-
hold cleaning products and cosmetics and to

enhance its development potential.

Annual Report 2001

were 5.7 percent down at 476 mulhon euros.

We have also sold our stake in the
Henkel-Ecolab joint venture to Ecolab Inc.,
USA, for a price of 484 million euros. Com-
bining the two businesses into one world-
wide company is strategically important
in order to better meet the needs of global
customers. Through its participation in
Ecolab Inc., Henke! will continue to share in
the success and long-term growth of that
company. We have since purchased more
shares in the market. At December 31, 2001,
our equity position in Ecolab Inc. amounted
to 28.4 percent. The new stockholder agree-
ment allows us to increase our interest to a
maximum of 35 percent.

We have used the proceeds from the sale
of the two companies to reduce borrowings,
giving us greater financial flexibility for
further strategic investment to secure the
growth of the Henkel Group.




10,905 11,381

10,259 EER
— ‘ A .

1987 1998 1999 2000 2001

Focus on brands and technologies

As of January 2002 we have a new business
sector: Consumer and Craftsmen Adhesives.
This underlines Henkel's leading position in
the branded adhesive products business. At
the same time we have combined our indus-
trial adhesives, engineering adhesives (Loc-
tite) and surface technologies activities in
the new Henkel Technologies business sec-
tor. This will enable us to develop the mar-
ket even more effectively, improve our know-

how interchange and reduce costs.

Special restructuring program:
“Strong for the Future”

In 2001 we launched a special restructuring
program under the slogan “Strong for the
Future” affecting the entire Group.

The aim of this initiative is to improve
competitiveness in all business sectors by
achieving permanent cost reductions in
production, marketing and administration.
A number of sites are being completely or

partially closed down. The program will cost

. 4767

40
372

320"

1997

1988 1999 2000 2001

" 576 million euros including gain from sale
of GFC shareholding (Degussa)
2 541 million suros including exceptional items

a total of 327 million euros, all of which has
been charged in the financial statements.
The size of the workforce is to be reduced by
about 3,000 employees, starting in 2002.

In all, 42 percent of the total cost is
accounted for by exceptional write-downs,
38 percent by cutbacks in the workforce,
and a further 20 percent by sundry expenses
incurred in connection with implementa-
tion of the program.

The special restructuring program is
intended to produce savings of around 130
million euros per year. We expect to realize
part of the savings in 2002 and to make the
full saving from 2003 onward.

Exceptional write-downs of goodwill

The rapidly growing volume of corporate
acquisitions had the effect of boosting the
prices paid for businesses, especially in the
second half of the 1990s. For Henkel, too,
that meant capitalizing more goodwill
when companies were purchased. We have

Management Report
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tested the fair value of these intangible
assets for impairment. On the basis of these
assessments we have written 251 million
euros off the goodwill carried at 2,084 mil-
lion euros. Major write-downs were taken at
the acquired companies Henkel of America,
USA, Henkel Lion Cosmetics, Japan, Henkel
Loctite in Brazil and in the UK, and in
respect of the brand-name product business

in China.
Sales increased to 13.1 billion euros

The economic environment deteriorated
sharply in 2001. The downturn in activity -
culminating in full-blown recession in some
countries - and the currency crisis in Turkey
had a negative impact on the sales perform-
ance of the Henkel Group.

Despite this we managed to achieve
sales growth of2.2 percent, reaching total
sales of 13.1 billion euros. Acquisitions and
organic growth each accounted for a 1.1
percent increase in sales. Sales generated by
our core businesses (excluding the divested
businesses of Cognis and Henkel-Ecolab)
reached 9.4 billion euros (up 4.9 percent).

Operating profit affected by
exceptional items

The 27.4 percent increase in operating profit
to 1,210 million euros is due to a number

of exceptional items. On the plus side, prof
itability was increased by the gains from

the sale of Cognis (545 million euros prior to
deduction of Cognis net earnings attribut-
able to purchaser) and the sale of Henkel-
Ecolab (358 millicn euros). On the minus
side, operating profit was burdened by the

@ Annual Report 2001

Special restructuring program:
Costs by business sector

{in million euros)

Laundry & Home Care

Cosmetics/Toilstrles

Consumer and Craftsmen Adhesives \'. . .28

Henkel Technologles

Corperate

Total

—

costs of the special restructuring program
(327 million euros) and the exceptional
write-downs of goodwill {251 million euros).
On a comparable basis, therefore, operating
profit was 885 million euros, 6.8 percent
less than in the previous year. The return on
capital employed (ROCE} was 20.1 percent
(13.1 percent on a comparable basis).

The businesses sold are included in the
sales and operating profit figures until the
end of November 2001. Up to that date
Cognis reported an operating profit of 194
million euros. Henkel-Ecolab, in its fiscal
year from December 1, 2000 to November
30, 2001, achieved an operating profit of

89 million euros. The businesses remaining

Special restructuring program:

Costs by region

327 million euros

North America  24%

Latin America 4%

Europe 46%

Asia-Pacific  26%




in the Henkel Group (continuing operations)
made an operating profit of 602 million
euros, 4.4 percent down on the previous

year.

New allocation of costs

In order to improve the international com-
parability of segment information we have
combined Group overheads and the costs of
central research in the new Corporate seg-
ment. These had previously been charged
out to the business sectors. Expenses that
cannot be allocated to individual business
sectors, previously shown in the “Other”
segment, are also included in this new
segment. The comparative figures for the
previous year have been restated in line with
the new structure. The gains from the sale
of Cognis and of Henkel-Ecolab, the costs of
the special restructuring program and the
exceptional write-downs of goodwill are also
included in the Corporate segment for 2001.

Sales and operating profit
by business sector

The Laundry & Home Care business sector
increased sales by 8.7 percent to 3.1 billion
euros. Gains in market share in continental
Europe, primarily as a result of a successful
policy of innovation and communication,
were a crucial factor behind this good per-
formance. We are now market leader in that
region with a share of more than 22 per-
cent. We also further strengthened our
market positions in Central and Eastern
Europe and in the Middle East. Sales figures
were additionally boosted by the acquisi-
tions of Pemos in Russia and the Viva brand
in Mexico. The operating profit of 243 mil-

(in million euros)

Operating profit

Operating profit
divested businesses:

Cognis

Henkel-Ecolab

Total excluding exceptional items

Gain from sale of Cognis prior
to deduction of net earnings
attributable to purchaser

Gain from sale of Henkel-Ecolab

Special restructuring program

Exceptional write-down of goodwill

Henkel Group

lion euros improved on the previous year’s
strong performance by 12.9 percent. The
EBIT margin went up by 0.3 percentage
points to 7.9 percent. The return on capital
employed was 24.5 percent. This perform-
ance is particularly satisfactory because
earnings had to cope with the adverse
effects of the currency crisis in Turkey,
increases in raw material costs, and heavier
investments in the new markets Mexico,
Algeria and India.

Operating profit benefited from price
increases, numerous cost reduction mea-
sures, and the rapid termination of the
unsuccessful joint venture with Dial in the
USA.

The Cosmetics/Toiletries business sector
generated sales worth 2.1 billion euros, an
increase of 2.8 percent. Colorants provided
the main engine of growth in the branded
cosmetics business. The hair salon business
also continued to make good progress. We
recorded strong sales growth in the Benelux
countries and in Italy, Spain and Russia.

Events in Turkey, on the other hand, had a

Management Report
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Laundry & Home Care

Cosmetics/Toiletries

Consumer and Craftsmen
Adhessives

Henkel Technologies

Corporate

Continuing operations

Chemical Products {Cognis)

Hygiene (Henkel-Ecolab)

Henkel Group

1 excluding exceptional items

negative impact on sales. Operating profit
increased by 12.0 percent to 166 million
euros. This represents an EBIT margin of
8.0 percent compared with 7.3 percent in
the previous year. The return on capital
employed rose-to 17.4 percent, mainly due
to good sales performance in Central and

Eastern Europe including Russia, and in the

—— international hair salon business. Disposal

of small regional brands generated a gain
of 12 million euros (2000: 10 million euros).
Sales of the new Consumer and Crafts-

men Adhesives business sector totaling 1.3
billion euros were much the same as in the
previous year. The persistently low level of
construction activity in Europe and declin-
ing demand for wallpaper pastes and house-
hold adhesives, especially in Germany, had
an adverse effect on sales. Stronger sales
growth was also inhibited by product for-
geries in Brazil and by the economic crisis
in Turkey. Operating profit fell by 30.6 per-
cent to 110 million euros, coupled with a
decrease in margins from 12.3 to 8.6 per-
cent. At 15.7 percent, the return on capital
employed was down on the previous year.

10 @ Annual Repart 2001

Sales of the newly formed Henkel Tech-
nologies business sector rose 5.6 percent to
2.8 billion euros. This increase, however, is
entirely attributable to the acquisitions of
Dexter and the surface technologies busi-
ness of Atofina. Sales were hit by the slump
in demand in the global electronics industry
and the downturn in automotive production
in North America. Although activities in
Europe had initially continued on an
upward curve, they were also caught up in
the effects of the recession in the USA as the
year progressed. Gratifyingly, the Henkel
Technologies business sector was able to
maintain its leading market position. In this
difficult economic climate operating profit
fell by 28.5 percent to 138 million euros. The
EBIT margin went down from 7.2 to 4.9
percent and the return on capital employed
dropped sharply to 8.1 percent,

Financial items

The negative balance from financial items
increased by 17 million euros to 151 million
euros. Income of 53 million euros from our
participation in Ecolab Inc. was 4 million
euros up on the previous year. Income from
our participation in Clorox went down by




36 million euros to 71 million euros owing to
the additional costs of extensive restructur-
ing measures to increase production effi-
ciency. The decrease in income from partici-
pations was almost completely offset by the
gain of 24 million euros from the disposal of
our participation in San Nopco, a Japanese
chemicals company.

Pre-tax and net earnings

Earnings before tax rose by 243 million
euros to 1,059 million euros. The effective
tax rate went up by 2.6 percentage points

to 40.7 percent. This increase is attributable
to the fact that the exceptional write-downs
of goodwill are not deductible for tax pur-
poses. After deducting the Cognis net earn-
ings attributable to purchaser, consolidated
net earnings of the Henkel Group rose by 7.1
percent to 541 million euros.

If exceptional items are exc.:luded, earn-
ings before tax went down by 82 million
euros to 734 million euros; the tax rate de-
creased by 3 percentage points to 35 percent
and net earnings fell accordingly by 5.7

percent to 476 million euros.
Dividend

Our financial strategy requires that the cash
dividend should equal at least 30 percent of
the Henkel Group's net earnings for the year
(after minority interests).

Despite the downturn in earnings
{excluding exceptional items) we are recom-
mending to the Annual General Meeting
that the high dividend level of the previous
year be maintained, i.e. that a dividend of
1.06 euros per share be paid on the ordinary

shares and 1.12 euros per share on the pre-
ferred shares. Under the new tax regulation
that has come into force in 2002, private
individuals in Germany have to pay tax on
half the dividend.

If the Annual General Meeting adopts our
dividend recommendation, the payout ratio
in relation to net earnings of the Henkel
Group after deducting minority interests wiil
be 31.1 percent, The dividend will be distrib-
uted out of the unappropriated profit of
Henkel KGaA, whose financial statements are
summarized on the next page.

Financial position

Cash flow from operating activities in-
creased by 566 million euros to 1,273 mil-
lion euros. The reasons for this lie primarily
in a higher cash inflow due to lower work-
ing capital and a decrease in tax payments
in 2001. The previous year’s figure had been
adversely affected by a tax back-payment
that arose from tax audits performed at
Henkel KGaA.

The cash flow from investing activities
improved by more than 2 billion euros
compared with the previous year. Taking
into account the proceeds from the sale of
Cognis and Henkel-Ecolab (1,873 million
euros) and capital expenditure on property,
plant and equipment totaling 534 million
euros, there was a net cash inflow of 1,120
million euros. At thé same time there was
a sharp reduction in acquisition volume
(from 971 million euros in 2000 to 361 mil-
lion euros).

We have used most of the free cash flow
of 2,416 million euros to reduce the level of

borrowings.

Management Report
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Statement of Income
{rounded figuras)

Sales

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Selling, research and
administrative expenses

QOther income
(net of other expenses)

Operating profit

Gains on disposal of
financial assets

Qther financial items

Financial items

Change in special accounts
with reserve element

Earnings before tax

Taxes on income

Net earnings

Allocation to revenue reserves

Amount withdrawn from reserves
for treasury stock

Unappropriated profit

Balance Sheet at December 31

Property, plant & equipment
and intangible assets

Financial assets

Fixed assets

Inventories

Receivables and
miscellanecus assets

Treasury stock

Liquid funds

Current assets

Total assets

Shareholders’ equity

Special items

Provisions

Liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

8,207

s

The full financial statements of Henkel KGaA with the auditors’
unqualified opinion are published in the Bundesanzeiger (Federal
Gazette) and filed with the Commercial Register in Dusseldorf.
Copies can be obtained from Henkel KGaA on request.

Annua! Report 2001

Asset and capital structure

Changes in the balance sheet structure in
2001 are dominated by the elimination of
Cognis and the Henkel-Ecolab joint venture.
Total assets amounted to 9,365 million
euros, about 2 billion euros less than at the
end of the previous year.

The removal of Cognis and the Henkel-
Ecolab joint venture from the consolidation
reduced almost every balance sheet line.
Financial assets moved in the opposite direc-
tion, increasing by 700 million eurocs. The
increase is partly due to raising the stock-
holding in Ecolab Inc. (+165 million euros),
which now amounts to 28.4 percent. Finan-
cial assets include a vendor note (a subordi-
nated long-term loan) of 352 million euros
{including interest) granted to the consor-
tium purchasing Cognis. :

The costs of 327 million euros for the
special restructuring program, as well as
income taxes still to be paid in 2002 and
non-recurring costs associated with the sale
of Cognis and Henkel-Ecolab, resulted -
despite the elimination of'those companies
from the consolidation - in an increase of
198 million euros in “Other Provisions”. We
used the cash proceeds from the disposals to
reduce borrowings from 2,963 million euros
to 1,210 million euros in 2001.




Henkel Group: Cash flow statement (summarized)

(in million euros)

Management Report

EBIT

Share of Cognis net earnings attributable to purchaser

Income taxes paid

Depreciation/write-ups of fixed assets

Net gains from disposals of fixed assets

Change in working capital

Cash flow from operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities

Interest/dividends {net)

Net cash flow

Acquisitions/financial assets

Free cash flow

Divestments, acquisitions and
joint ventures

The sale of the Cognis chemicals business
was based on an enterprise value of 2.5
billion euros. This represented an EBIT
multiplier of 11.4 and an EBITDA multiplier
of 6.9 based on year 2000 figures. After
deducting pension provisions and borrow-
ings, the equity value amounted to 1,396
million euros.

In order to help the purchasers finance
the price, we did not insist on full payment
in cash but advanced them a loan of 350
million euros in the form of a vendor note.
This has a term of ten years and interest is
payable at the rate of 7 percent per annum
for the first three years and thereafter at
16 percent per annum until maturity. This
represents a strong incentive to redeem the
loan by the end of three years.

The sale of the shares of the Cognis

companies outside Germany will be practi-

cally tax-free. The tax charge on the disposal
of the German assets will amount to some
150 million euros.

We will continue to maintain our close
commercial relationships with Cognis in
the future as one of our most important
raw material suppliers. The existing service
agreements with Cognis will remain in
force for the next two years. The income
from these agreements will cover Henkel’s
remaining infrastructure and administra-
tion costs.

We concluded the transfer of our major-
ity interest (50 percent plus one vote) in the
Henkel-Ecolab joint venture to Ecolab Inc.,
USA, on November 30, 2001. The price of
484 million euros was paid in cash.

Annual Report 2001
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Henkel Group: Balance sheet structure

', (in million evros)*

11,382
proportionin % [~ |
9,659 9,385

Property,

plant & equipment and
intangible assets
Financial assets

Inventories

Receivables
and misc, assets

2000 20007 2001

11,382
[ | proportionin %

9,659
9,365 —— | 31 | Shareholders’ equity

| I——
17 | Pension provisions

18 11 | Other provisions

26 | Borrowings
18

T3] | 15 | Other liabllities

(
|

2000" 2000

" excluding Cognis and Henke)-Ecolab

Through the acquisition of the surface
treatment business of Atofina (Turco) at a
cost of 74 million euros, the Surface Tech-
nologies segment operating within the
Henkel Technologies business sector has
further expanded its leading world market
position. With sales in the USA, Western
Europe and Australia amounting to 100
million euros per annum, this acquisition
will considerably strengthen our positions
in the aerospace, steel processing and the
metal cold-forming industries.

The takeover of the automotive operations
of Vagnone & Boeri, Italy, for 12.5 million
euros resulted in a significant improvement
in our position in respect of adhesives and
sealants for the Italian automotive industry.

In line with the agreement already in
place, we increased our participation in
the detergents manufacturer OAO Pemos,
Russia, from 51 percent to 85 percent, The
purchase price for these additional shares
amounted to 7.5 million euros,

@ Annual Report 2001

The portfolio of our New Businesses unit
- which is responsible for handling our
investments in new business models with
the emphasis on e-business ventures ~ cur-
rently contains five participations. The
electronic marketplace cc-markets merged
at the middle of the year with chemplorer
to create cc-chemplorer, enabling it to
expand its leading market position in the
field of technical products and services.
CPGmarket.com, an electronic marketplace
for the consumer goods industry, was able
to attract new investors by raising new
capital.

Capital expenditures

In fiscal 2001, 561 million euros were invest-
ed in property, plant and equipment, 132
million euros in intangible assets and 682
million euros in financial assets. Of this
latter figure, 165 million euros went into
investments in companies accounted for at
equity. Also included in financial assets are
the vendor note for 352 million euros




(including interest) granted to the consor-
tium that acquired Cognis, and indemnifica-
tion entitlements against Cognis Deutsch-
land GmbH & Co. KG, Diisseldorf,
amounting to 139 million euros for pension
obligations.

The majority of the expenditures in
property, plant and equipment involved the
creation and expansion of production capac-
ities. The projects undertaken included the
upgrade of a technology center in Detroit,
USA, the installation of production facilities
for dishwasher detergents in Foetz, Luxem-
bourg, and the expansion of a factory for
the production of plastisols for the automo-
tive industry in Syzran, Russia.

Investments in financial assets included,
for example, the increase in our participa-
tion in Ecolab Inc. We purchased a total of
4.1 million shares at an aggregate cost of
165 million euros, so increasiné our holding
from 25.4 percent to 28.4 percent as of
December 31, 2001.

Projects representing an investment
outlay of 300 million euros in property,
plant and equipment are planned for fiscal
2002. Current projects include the building
of research and development facilities

and also the construction of a new cosmet-

ics research building in Disseldorf. The

Property, plant
and equipment

Intangible
assets

Capital expenditure on property, plant
and equipment, intangible assets and
financial assets

726
; 969
“o 746
1320) | 567
1328 T3
1997 1998 1999 2000 2001

Financial assets
(excluding at equity gains)

M Property, plant and equipment
M Intangible assets

Henkel Technologies business sector, which
accounts for a good third of the planned
investments, is due to commission a technol-

ogy center in Yokohama, Japan, in 2002.
Procurement

During the year under review, raw material
prices rose by 2 percent on average in the
consumer products and technology sectors.
We expect prices in 2002 to either remain
constant or decline.

Through the electronic marketplaces cc-
chemplorer and CPGmarket.com in which
we have a participating interest we issued
requests for quotations and carried out
auctions accounting for a total volume of
over 100 million euros. At the same time,
the quantity of procurement transactions
is also being constantly expanded.

Management Report
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Henkel shares

The Henkel share price held up very well in
difficult stock market conditions. The Ger-
man DAX index fell by 19.8 percent in 2001,
and the Dow Jones Stoxx 600 by 17.0 percent.
Henkel's preferred shares, by contrast, fell by
only 9.0 percent and the ordinary shares by
4.2 percent.

A total of 83.2 million Henkel preferred
shares were bought and sold on the German
stock exchanges in 2001 - an average of

- 328,900 shares per trading day. That repre-

sents an increase of 25 percent compared
with the previous year.

From the date when Henkel's preferred
shares were first issued in 1985 to the end
of 2001, a long-term investor reinvesting alt
dividends (ignoring the effect of taxation)
would have had an average annual return
of 11.8 percent. The average annual return
on the DAX index, by contrast, was only
9.6 percent.

Henkel will be significantly affected by
the new rules governing the composition of
the DAX index which will come into force in
June 2002. The market capitalization used
for the index ranking will then be based
only on Henkel's preferred shares, Taking
year-end share prices, Henkel's market capi-
talization will drop from 8.7 to 3.8 billion
euros. According to the preliminary calcula-
tions of the German Stock Exchange at the
end of January 2002, Henkel is likely to slip
five places in the rankings to number 25. The
inclusion of Henkel's preferred shares in the
DAX index is not at risk and it is our intention
that they will remain in the DAX index long
term.

During 2001 we relaunched our Investor
Relations website. By going to our homepage

at www.ir.henkel.com, anyone who is inter-
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ested can now access even more interactive
functions as well as information about the

Group and the shares.

Ratings once again confirmed

The rating agencies Standard & Poor's and
Moody’s have been evaluating the creditwor-
thiness of the Henkel Group every year since
1993. In May 2001 the good ratings were

Earnings per preferred share

6.50

1997 1998 1998 2000 2001 J

R Amonrtization of goodwill

B Earnings per preferred share




again confirmed. These ratings enable us to

continue to secure our borrowing require-
ments at favorable conditions in interna-
tional money and capital markets. The
assessments of the rating agencies factor in
our leading market positions, financial
flexibility and management quality, plus
the openness and credibility of our commu-
nications with analysts. ‘

Standard & Poor’s Moody’s
Al+ (short term) P1 (short term)
AA- (long term) Al (long term)

Research and development

Expenditure on research and development
at the Henkel Group rose in fiscal 2001 by

7 percent to 343 million euros.Its share of
sales amounted to 2.6 percent. We spent 136
million euros on application-related advice
and consultancy for our customers. On
average 4,000 employees were engaged in
research, development and application
engineering worldwide.

Excluding Cognis and Henkel-Ecolab,
our investment in research and develop-
ment amounted to 255 million euros, 9
percent more than in the previous year; this
corresponds to 2.7 percent of sales. The
amount spent on customer advisory services
totaled 82 million euros. The average num-
ber of employees engaged in research and
development was around 3,000.

In order to underpin the success of the
Company in the long term, our R&D activi-
ties are aligned to a dual strategy:

Management Report

Earnings per
share in accor-
dance with IAS

Ordinary
shares 1.94

Preferred o
shares 1.99

Share price at
year end

Ordinary
shares 51,13

Preferred
shares 57.52

High for the year

Ordinary
shares 52.05

Preferred
shares 58.80

Low for the year

Crdinary
shares 37.43

Preferred
shares 39.01

Dividend

Ordinary
shares 0868 77

Preferred
shares 0.74

Market
capitalization
(In billion euros) 7.84

proposed

Ordinary shares ;_86./6

Preferred shares" | 694

preferred shares bought back for Stock Incentive Program:
992,680 shares in 2000; 808,120 shares in 2001;
total treasury stock: 1,800,800 shares

® First: We conduct innovative research
in order to expand existing product port-
folios. In the Hair Care segment, we have
succeeded, for example, in developing a

novel active ingredient, the color vitamin
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Henkel Group: Expenditure on research
and development

1997 1998 1998 2000 2001
23% 23% 2.5% 25% 2.6%

R&D ratio
(expenditurs on R&D as % of sales)

B6, which optimally prepares the hair for co-
loring. This vitamin is being incorporated
for the first time in the Pre Color Lotion of
the Vision range of colorants. We are likewise
systematically researching into the cause

of agerelated changes in the skin at the mo-
lecular level. This enables us better to under-
stand the effects of skin aging and to deve-
lop effective products that keep the skin
younger for longer. For dishwashing machi-
nes we have developed enzymes that show
clear performance advantages in relation to
stubborn stains. Further highly promising
R&D projects are already at an advanced
stage of completion.

® Second: We are developing new fields of
business. To this end we have established
research companies hand-in-hand with uni-
versities and professorial faculties. We are
also actively seeking opportunities to parti-
cipate in young start-up companies offering
potentially important technologies for the
markets of the future. Interesting examples

@ Annual Report 2001

include Phenion of Frankfurt/Main, Germa-
ny, active in molecular cell physiology, Sus-
Tech in Darmstadt, Germany, for nano-
technology, and Vermicon of Munich and
also Natural Implant of Lyons, France, in
the biotechnological sector.

Through this dual strategy we can
ensure that we gain access to key technolo-
gies while securing the ongoing viability of
our existing activities, You can obtain fur-
ther information from our web page

www.innovation.henkel.com.

Employees

Our workforce worldwide decreased in
number during fiscal 2001 by 15,150 to
45,753. After adjusting for the divestment of
Cognis and Henkel-Ecolab, our personnel
levels decreased by 1,237 compared with the
previous year. The proportion of employees
abroad remained virtually unchanged at

75 percent.

The payroll cost ratio describes the
relationship between personnel expenditure
and sales; excluding Cognis and Henkel-
Ecolab this stood at 20.8 percent in 2001.
Per capita sales rose from 192,600 euros to
198,800 euros.

Employee Share Program

In its 125® year, Henkel launched a world-
wide Employee Share Program. Employees
can invest up to 4 percent of their annual
remuneration in Henkel preferred shares,
subject to a maximum of 4,000 euros each
in any one year. Henkel adds an extra 50
percent to the amount invested. The shares
have to be held for a minimum of three
years, More than 10,000 employees in 44
countries have participated in the Program
- an impressive demonstration of confi-
dence in the Company.
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Germany

Europe (excl.
Ger.)/Africa/
Middle East

North America

Latin America

Asla-Pacific

Total

In 2001 Henkel also issued the second
tranche of the Stock Incentive Program for

about 700 executive management personnel.

The 808,120 preferred shares required to
fund this tranche were purchased at an

average price of 69.95 euros,

Knowledge management

Under the heading “knowledge manage-
ment”, we have since 1999 been systemati-
cally collecting internal know-how and
expertise and storing this information in
databases for use by employees. At the pres-
ent time about 1,200 topics can be accessed,
covering process knowledge, success factors,
suggested solutions to problems, and case
studies. Knowledge management is an effec-
tive tool for improving the quality of deci-
sions and increasing the pace of innovation.

Sustainability

We are committed to the principles of sus-
tainable development. We see them as an
important contribution to enhancing the
future potential of our Company. Henkel
aims to gain competitive advantage in the
marketplace with products and business
processes that comply with the principles of
sustainability. We are promoting the imple-

mentation of this strategy worldwide with
the help of integrated management systems
for safety, health, protection of the environ-
ment and quality assurance, and with a code
of conduct which has to be observed by all S
employees. These integrated management o ’
systems are built around a framework of
uniform standards based on internationally
recognized best management practice.

Implementation of these standards is
regularly reviewed by means of internal
audits. All main production sites - with the i
exception of those recently acquired - had : :
been audited at least once by the end of
2001. Depending on market requirements,
each business sector also avails itself of the
possibility of submitting to external certifi-
cation in accordance with international
management standards. A large proportion
of our business activities have already been
certified under ISC 9000 quality manage-
ment standards. In addition 53 major pro-
duction sites had also been registered under
the international ISO 14001 environment
management standard by the end of 2001.
The sites concerned account for more than
50 percent of the total production output of
the Henkel Group.

You can read about the progress we

made toward sustainability last year in our
Sustainability Report for 2001 and on our
website at www.she henkel.com.
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Risk report

Risk management is an integral part of our
value-driven management approach. Our
corporate planning and decision-making
procedures are aimed at identifying risks at
an early stage and utilizing opportunities to
secure the long-term future of the Company.
The functional integrity and efficiency of
our system for the identification of risk are
reviewed every vear by our external auditors
and the internal audit department.

We oversee the entire risk management
process by means of strategic early warning
systems designed for long-term prediction,
reporting systems at individual company
and Group level, and a comprehensive con-
trolling system. All these procedures are
documented and constantly updated in a
special manual that serves as the basis for
systems audits., by our external auditors and
the internal audit department.

Another important tool for assessing
the overall level of risk is the risk inventory,
whereby every aspect of the Group's expo-
sure to risk is evaluated with regard to the
possible amount of damage, the probability
of such damage being incurred, and the
security systems in place. Every possible risk
which could have a material effect on earn-
ings is recorded with the help of question-
naires and systematically detailed in a “risk
atlas”. No risks were identified in the year
under review which - either individually or
in the context of the overall level of risk -
could endanger the continued existence of
the Company.

The main risks relate to the following:
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® Functional risks

We deal with interest rate risks, currency
risks and liquidity risks through an active
treasury management function. These risks
are hedged in accordance with guidelines
in force throughout the Group. The instru-
ments used to hedge our financial risks are
described in detail in the notes to the finan-
cial statements (see page 70).

We have installed appropriate hardware
and software in our computer systems to
minimize the risk of unauthorized access to
systems and data, and the risk of data being
lost. Our security strategy includes detailed
emergency response plans.

We have strengthened our fundamental
research activities and take a stake in new
companies working on interesting technolo-
gies for the markets of the future. This helps
us to minimize the risk of failing to recognize
in good time potential new technologies.

e Operational risks

We take care not to be dependent on any
single supplier; in this way we ensure that
the goods and services required are always
available. We also give preference to suppli-
ers who are registered under ISO standards.

We work assiduously on new formula-
tions and innovative forms of packaging
to reduce any risk to earnings caused by
unforeseen fluctuations in raw material
prices. Continued expansion of the world-
wide purchasing management function also
contributes to the improvement in the cost
situation.

The manufacturing process for our
products requires highly complex technical
production facilities. Any malfunction or
extended downtime can affect profitability.
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These risks are minimized by a distributed
pattern of manufacturing sites, appropriate
standards of safety, the expert skills of our
employees and regular maintenance of plant
and equipment.

We carry out comprehensive laboratory
and market tests, market research activities
and detailed planning before launching new
products or moving into new markets. This
process is underpinned by systematic sup-
port from our knowledge management
function. It limits the risk of new products
proving unsuccessful and also the risk asso-
ciated with product liability.

Our customer base is so diversified that
reliance on individual customers is mini-
mal. That reduces the element of risk when
important customers are lost. The strong
position of our products in the marketplace
and the long-standing good relationships
that we have with our customeys reduce the

risk of being excluded from their lists.

QOutlook

Our projections indicate that the economic
climate for our businesses will remain diffi-
cult, at least for the first half of 2002. We do
not expect sales during the first two quar-
ters to get much help from the important
mechanical engineering, electronics and
automotive industries. As the construction
industry may well already have reached the
bottom of its cycle in 2001, we think there
may be a gradual improvement in our con-
struction-related activities in the year ahead.
We anticipate sales of branded products to
continue to make good progress.

In view of the difficult economic envi-
ronment, we have set ourselves the following

prime targets:

e profitable growth to strengthen our
continuing operations;

@ strict control of costs, capital expendi-
ture and working capital;

o divestment of persistently unprofitable
activities;

® maximizing synergies from the new
composition of our portfolio.

We are confident that we will be able
to increase sales to more than 10 billion
euros in 2002. With our new corporate
structure - and without Cognis and Henkel-
Ecolab - we are forecasting an increase of a
good 10 percent in operating profit. All the
business sectors will contribute to this
growth. In particular we are expecting the
Henkel Technologies sector to show a sus-
tained improvement in the second half of
the year.

The net result from financial items
will show a marked improvement in 2002
because interest charges will go down signif-
icantly as a result of the reduced level of
borrowings. Net earnings for 2002 are
expected to remain below the figure of 476
million euros (excluding exceptional items)
for fiscal 2001. The positive movement in
the financial items will not be sufficient to
compensate for the loss in operating profit
arising from the two major divestments.

The outlook for each business sector is
described in more detail in the relevant
sections of this Annual Report.
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Laundry & Home Care

Sales pass the thrée-billioh euro threshold.

At Laundry & Home Care, we achieved new record

figures for b'o'th ‘sales and operating profit in fiscal

2001. We succeeded in significantly increasing

our market shares. A,boost.to growth came from

the further éxpansion of our‘already good market

positions in the Middle East and also in Central and
Eastern Europe. One of the primary contributors to

this success was our premier international brand

Persil. -

Detergents

Our heavy-duty detergents continued to per-
form well. Sales rose by 16 percent.

Europe is our 1_3rgest and most impor-
tant market. Here we were able once again
to improve our competitive position - not
only in the case of powder products but also
in relation to liquid detergents. We have
intreduced our gel detergents, and have
pushed forward our range of highly concen-
trated detergents in the form of Megaperls
and Tabs, in all countries of continental
Europe.

The performance of our major interna-
tional brand Persil was outstanding. In
Germany, it further extended its position as
market leader. In Austria, the market share
again grew from an already high base, and

in Scandinavia, Persil had a promising start.
And also in heavily populated growth coun- —
tries such as Poland, Hungary, the Czech 3
Republic and Egypt, we were able to further
increase the market shares enjoyed by Persil.
Our most important national brands
likewise improved their market position -
particularly Spee in Germany and Super
Croix in France. Although competition
remained heavy, we were nevertheless able
to further increase sales in Germany and
France. In Central and Eastern Europe
including Russia, we likewise realized high-
er sales revenues. Particular efforts in the
case of Persil, and the successful launch of
the Rex brand with its exceptional value
profile, contributed to these results. Having
purchased the company OAO Pemos, we
have now taken over market leadership in

Russia.
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Laundry & Home Care

Qutside Europe, our business expanded
by more than 50 percent as a result of
both acquisitions and organic growth. We
achieved our largest growth rates in Algeria
and Mexico. Teething problems encountered
in bath countries were successfully over-
come during the second half of the year.

In our established businesses outside
Europe, too, sales growth lay in the double-
digit percentage range, well exceeding the
rate of increase of the markets concerned.
Persil performed very well throughout the
entire Middle East region. The brand X-Tra
was suécessfully launched in Egypt in the
low-cost, high-performance detergents
category.

Competition again intensified in China.
Although successfully concluded rationali-
zation programs increased efficiency, our
business there was still unable to bridge the
gap to the profit zone. Further structural
measures have already been introduced.

In fiscal 2001, material costs lay at the
center of our general efforts to optimize our
processes. Moreover, we have introduced
a large number of individual measures in
order to improve our formulations and pack-
aging. The fact that our sales grew at a sig-
nificantly faster rate than our selling and
administration costs provided a further
boost to results.

Laundry Care

Our highly profitable special detergents
performed very well. Worthy of particular
mention among the major contributory
factors are the new fragrances and the suc-
cessfully launched liquid detergent Black
Magic, which protects the colors of black
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Product groups

Heavy-duty detergents; special detergents;
fabric softeners; dishwashing products;

household cleaners; scouring agents; floor and
carpet care products; bath and toilet cleaners;
glass cleaners and lens wipes; furniture, kitchen
care and laundry conditioning products.

and dark textiles in the wash. Thanks to the
convincing performance of this product,

we achieved leading market positions in this
category in France, Spain and Austria. Since
the end of 2001, Black Magic has also been
available in Italy, so concluding the Euro-
pean rollout.

The fabric softeners business main-
tained the high sales level of the preceding
year. We were able to further boost sales
through market launches involving fra-
grance bags and products designed to make
ironing easier. The brand Minidou in France
was completely overhauled.

The Svit brand introduced in fiscal 2000
did not find acceptance in the category of
dry-<cleaning in the tumbler. Effective as of
the end of 2001 we consequently dissolved
the US joint venture with the Dial company.,
which had been focusing on this segment
{Custom Cleaner).

Sales of laundry additives remained at
the level of the previous year. We were able
to increase sales in countries in which we
already enjoy good market positions - par-
ticularly Germany and Spain.

Dishwashing and Cleaning Detergents

We succeeded in further increasing sales in
dishwashing and cleaning detergents. Dur-
ing the year under review, we significantly
expanded our leading market positions in

automatic and hand dishwashing products.




In the automatic dishwashing detergents
category, the new Somat 3 in 1 (cleaning
agent with integrated rinse aid and salt) set
a further milestone, building on the previ-
ous success of the 2 in 1 detergent tabs.
Numerous consumer tests and the German
consumer watchdog Stiftung Warentest
confirmed the superior quality of the prod-
uct. We were therefore able to increase our
Somat market shares in Germany and
France, and to reach the position of number
two in Italy. Encouraged by these successes,
we have now entered the British market

as well.

In the case of our all-purpose cleaners,
we complemented our 2-phase liquid prod-
ucts introduced in Italy and Greece during
the previous year with new lines positioned
for hygienic cleanliness. In addjtion, the
introduction of a new chlorinated spray
product has further expanded our domi-
nant position in the Spanish market for
chlorinated cleaners.

In the specialty cleaner category, we
were able to significantly strengthen our
position in respect of toilet cleaners through
the introduction of 2 number of innovative
products. However, this business continues
to be exposed to heavy competitive
pressures.

In the glass cleaner segment, we have
achieved a broader business base at the
international level thanks to successful
launches in Central and Eastern Europe,
and also Portugal.

In order to optimize our European pro-
duction structures, two factories were closed
in Finland.

'3,082
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Outlook

We expect fiscal 2002 to be characterized
by a significant softening of global market
growth. However, our target is to outstrip
our markets by achieving growth rates of
between 3 and 4 percent. We intend to fur-
ther consolidate our market leadership in
continental Europe with product innova-
tions, and to further expand our positions
in other regions. In particular, we shall
continue to focus on our cost structures,
which we intend to optimize. In the growth
regions outside Europe, we are concentrat-
ing on penetrating our markets with Persil
and on entering new market segments. As a
result of these measures, we are expecting
a rise in operating profit in the high single-
digit percentage range.
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Innovations bring growth.

The Cosmetics/Toiletries business again performed

well in the year under review. We have grown

stronger through innovation, portfolio extensions
and not least through our entry into further national

markets. Foliowing the takeover of Yamahatsu,

our Japanese activities are now pooled within

the new Henkel Lion Corporation.

Successful brand-name products

Schwarzkopf & Henkel sales performance
was again significantly boosted by Hair
Cosmetics. Innovative colorants were at the
forefront of our successes. In Germany and
Austria, we launched Vision onto the premi-
um segment of the colorants market. Vision
promises a professional coloration result for
the home user. We opened up a new product
category through the introduction of an
innovative color freshener within the Poly

series. In the hair care segment, we strength-

ened the Schauma brand with new products

in the form of shampoos, rinses and treat-

ments. The Gliss Kur series, extended by care
lines for fine and normal hair, was able to
expand its market position in relation to
treatments and rinses. A particularly signifi-
cant step in the styling segment was the
introduction of Taft in Scandinavia. Thanks
to new product variants, the brand was able
to increase its share of the core German
market and consolidate its leading position.

The introduction of the Fa Wellness
System care series constituted the focus of
our activities in the Toiletries segment. The
care system consists of shower gels and body
lotions that engender a feeling of physical
wellbeing. Fa was able to underpin its posi-
tion as the number two brand in the Euro-
pean market for body care products.
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We also expanded our market position

in the European skin care segment. Diader-
. mine holds a solid position as the third

largest facial care brand in Europe. The care
product series Aok was relaunched with a
complete redesign and with new product
variants. Innovations also drove our oral
care products business - the formulation of
Theramed was improved, and in the most
important countries of Europe we are also
now offering Theramed in a new type of
tube dispenser. Our fragrances business per-
formed exceptionally well, thanks in partic-
ular to the successful upward trend being
enjoyed by our Italian brands.

Regional market positions strengthened
and expanded

Our German business recorded a rise in
sales, to which Hair Cosmetics and Toiletries
were significant contributors.

We also achieved sales revenue increases
in other European countries. Business in
Russia in particular showed above-average
performance. There, Schauma and Taft are
the market leaders and Fa has also now
assumed a position among the foremost
brands. On the other hand, sales perform-
ance in France and Scandinavia did not quite
meet our expectations. In Turkey and Israel,
the prevailing political and economic crises

had a negative effect on our businesses.
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Product groups

Tollet soaps; bath and shower products;
deodorants; skin creams; skincare products;

dental care and orat hygiens products; hair
shampoos and conditioners; hair colorants;
hairstyling and permanent wave products;
perfumes and fragrances; hair salon products.

In North America, our focus has been on
hair care products. Qur brands L.A. Looks
and Dep performed well and occupy leading
positions in the styling market segment. We
likewise realized good sales figures in Latin
America, particularly in Colombia, Peru,
Ecuador and in the countries of Central
America. The relaunch of the colorant brand
Igora Vital in Venezuela was very successful;
in addition, Fa has established itself there
as a brand with considerable potential for
growth.

In the Asia-Pacific region; we were able
to increase sales as compared with the previ-
ous year in spite of the slight softening of
the Japanese and Australian currencies. The
Henkel Lion Corporation newly founded
in the first quarter of 2001 restructured our
businesses in Japan and revised the col-
orants portfolio for that market, The empha-
sis here lay on the local brands Paon and
Freshlight. In India, the local brand Margo
performed exceptionally well. We extended
the offering through the introduction of
Margo Cream and Margo Lotion. In Aus-
tralia, we have revised the Extra Care brand.
The new brand Live Permanent has strength-
ened our position in the colorants market
there. Business in China during the year

under review was beset with difficulties.




Salon business on course
for further growth

Our salon business continued to make good
progress on the sales front. We achieved
gratifying growth rates in Russia, Benelux
and Great Britain and also the national
markets served by our Central Eastern
Europe management holding company. Cur
market activities focused on the brands
Igora Royal, Bonacure and Osis. The product
family under the Igora Royal umbrella was
augmented through the introduction of
Igora Personality, a colorant range with grad-
uated gray coverage and improved shades.
Under the Bonacure brand, we launched the
Smooth Express rinse and care series onto
the market. This eliminates the need for
working-in time and is being marketed in a
completely new packaging. In the case of
Osis, the emphasis lay on the o;lgoing inter-
national rollout with market launches tak-

ing place in further countries.
Outlook

We expect growth in the cosmetics market
worldwide to remain satisfactory. Our goal
is an increase in sales of 7 percent.

We intend to further strengthen our
core competence of hair cosmetics in Europe
and to extend our market position in this
segment. The steady further development of
our international brands remains one of our
priorities. Cost management will continue
to be a major feature through 2002. We plan
to achieve an increase in operating profit in

the high single-digit percentage range.
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Consumer and Craftsmen Adhesives

Adhesives affected by regional market weaknesses.

Sales at Consumer and Craftsmen Adhesives for

fiscal 2001 remained at the level of the previous

" year. Developments in the individual regions varied

considerably. We have introduced measures

designed to improve short-term earnings and

secure long-term growth. Our position as world

market leader remains unchallenged. We are

concentrating our business on internationally

strong brands.

New organizational framework

Qur branded adhesives are distributed via
our own organizational structures in more
than 60 countries. From 2002, the business
is to be managed in the form of an inde-
pendent business sector. This will provide a
good basis for efficient market development.
We emphasize the brand character of our
'products and this will also be effectively
communicated by the new organization. We
expect the close relationship that exists
with our other brand-name product bust-
nesses to bring significant momentum and
tangible synergy effects for ongoing com-
mercial development. The close technologi-
cal relationships with our industrial and
engineering adhesives will remain in place.
These latter product segments now belong
to the Henkel Technologies business sector.

Widely differing regional developments

The German business continued to suffer
from the persistently low level of activity

in the construction sector. The significant

downturn in dwelling construction in par-
ticular had negative consequences for prod-
uct sales in the craftsmen adhesives and
do-it-yourself segments.

In the other countries of Europe, busi-
ness performance was considerably better -
this applies particularly to Great Britain and
the countries of Southern Europe. The clear
upward trend in our Eastern European
business activities continued with double-
digit growth rates; in Russia and in the
Ukraine, our expectations were significantly
exceeded.

The ongoing economic difficulties in
Turkey had a negative influence on our
activities there.

@ Annual Repart 2001 31




Consumer and Craftsmen Adhesives

In absolute terms, North America exhib-
ited the largest level of regional growth in
fiscal 2001, with all the major product
groups contributing. Business performance
within Latin America varied considerably:

a very positive trend in Mexico, for example,
was offset by significant problems in Brazil.
Aside from the dramatic fall in the value of
the local currency, large quantities of prod-
uct forgeries of our cyanoacrylate superglue
came to light. We are, however, convinced
that we have now solved the latter problem.

Influenced by the difficult market situa-
tion in Japan, business in the Asian region
stagnated.

We have already instituted the appro-
priate measures for the crisis countries, and
loss-making activities have been discontin-
ued. These resgructuring instruments will
improve the earning power of the businesses
concerned in the short term and secure

their commercial viability in the long term.

Strong, international brands as
the backbone of our business

In the year under review we took the deci-
sion to reduce our brands portfolio so as to
enable us to concentrate on a few, interna-
tionally strong lines. Brands with no more
than local importance are to be transferred
to international brands or, where appropri-
ate, sold. We have also further consolidated
and expanded the position of our major
brands with a series of innovations and
portfolio enhancements.

Our cyanoacrylate superglue line, mar-
keted under the Loctite brand, has been
augmented through the incorporation of a
new product which offers the advantages of
maximum ease of use and application preci-

sion. This has provided us with a unique
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Product groups

Wallpaper pastes; ceiling, wall covering and tile
adhesives; home decoration products; sealants;
polyurethane foam fillers; cyanoacrylates; con-
tact adhesives; wood glues; assembly adhesives;
PVC pipe adhesives; flooring adhesives; building
adhesives; coatings; roofing products; glue
sticks; glue roliers; correction rollers; adhesive
tapes.

position on the marketplace and, through
Loctite, we enjoy the position of global
market Jeader.

From the Pritt product family, our
world-leading brand for gluing and correct-
ing applications, we are now offering a new
line in the form of Pritt “mark it” rollers.
These enable texts to be highlighted by
dry-marking. Compared with conventional
liquid-based text markers, therefore, the
primary advantage of the new rollers lies
in their greater convenience of use.

We introduced our adhesive tape range,
marketed under the brand name Duck,
to further selected countries during the
past year. We are currently driving forward
our Power Tape concept in order to achieve
greater penetration in Europe with the
Duck brand of adhesive tapes. Duck Power
Tape is a fabric-reinforced multi-purpose
adhesive tape capable of withstanding even
quite extreme loading.

‘We have also expanded the range of our
high-strength contact adhesives marketed
under the brand name Pattex, by incorporat-
ing new, high-performance and user-friendly
products. In the field of assembly adhesives,
the fastest growing segment, we have suc-
ceeded in setting new standards in bonding
strength. Also new is Pattex Power Knete,

a multi-functional epoxy resin compound.
This can be used for bonding, assembling,
repairing, filling, sealing and reconstructing
virtually all types of material. With a new




Consumer and Craftsmen Adhesives

adhesive spray under the brand name Pat-
tex, we were able to achieve - just a few
weeks after the market launch in Germany -
a leading position in the category
concerned.

‘Wall covering adhesives as a central com-
ponent of our home decoration products
portfolio constitute a core business at
Henkel. Metylan is an international brand
with which we occupy the position of world
market leader in wallpaper pastes. Now,
with a newly developed generation of paste
products in this category, we intend to
strengthen our unique position on the
marketplace.

In the tile adhesives sector, we also now
offer a universally applicable product type
that weighs less and is easier to apply than
more conventional compounds. Following a
successful launch in the German market, we
are now also introducing the product into
other countries. i

With a new adhesive for parquet and
laminate flooring from the Thomsit range,
we have succeeded in combining the func-
tions of bonding and noise insulation in one
product.

Through innovation, we are expanding
Tangit into our umbrella brand for pipe-
assembly and pipe-laying products. In 2001
we introduced an innovative thread-sealing
product into several countries in the form
of Tangit Unilock.

Effective October 1, 2001, we took over
the business of Kertscher Bauchemie, Pader-
born, Germany. This has enabled us to close
a technological gap in the building sealing
products sector. We are currently in the
process of merging the acquired know-how
with our existing range of building adhe-
sives. As a result of this purchase, interest-
ing growth prospects are opening up for us
both at home and abroad.

Share of Group sales: 10%

1,290 1,275

956

1997 1988 1898 2000 2001

Outiook

‘We regard the short and medium-term
prospects for our branded adhesives busi-
ness as encouraging. All the indicators
appear to point to a recovery of the markets
in Europe, and Germany in particular. With
the additional support of new product
initiatives, we expect growth in the region
of 4 percent. We intend to launch these new
products quickly and over a wide interna-
tional base. Decreasing raw material costs
will relieve the pressure on us on the cost
side. The initiated restructuring measures
will also add momentum to the upturn.

We are basing our planning on a forecast
double-digit percentage increase in operat-
ing profit. And we are examining the possi-
bilities of strategic and/or complementary
acquisitions in order to close gaps in our
product portfolio and strengthen our
regional presence.

@ Annual Report 2001

33




w
£
o
2
]
€
£
H
=
2
[
g
X




Henkel Technologies

Strong poSitions maintai‘h}ed under difficult market

conditions.

A new organizational structure has been in place

since the start of 2002. We have incorporated our

products for industrial applications from our Indus-

trial Adhesives, Engineering Adhesives and Surface

Technologies units within the Henkel Technologies

business sectbr. This reorganizatioh will enable
us to accommodate Custofrié_r 're‘quireméntsv to
even better effect; it will impro‘ve Ou‘r efficiency
and furthér stre_ngthevn our positioh vis-a-vis the

competition. .
lndu#trial Adhesives

Numerous innovations contributed to the
achievement of above-average growth in the
year under review. However, our margins
came under heavy pressure due to substan-
tially increased raw material prices. In addi-
tion, the currency problems being encoun-
tered in Turkey and South America placed
a burden on our operating profit.

The granulation of reactive polyurethane

adhesives can be regarded as a major techno-

logical milestone. The introduction of the
fourth generation of solvent-free laminating
adhesives under the Liofol brand has also
consolidated our position as technological
leader. In the labeling sector, we have devel-
oped a range of synthetic adhesives for glass
and PET plastic bottles that are marketed
under the name Optal L. With new, higher-

performance Euromelt products, we have
enhanced our capability to meet increasing
PET recycling requirements.

We have further consolidated our lead-
ing market position in Europe. Good busi-
ness performances in Southeast Europe and
in the CIS states also contributed to this
development. Owing to brisk demand, we
have taken a further production line on
stream in Diisseldorf for the manufacture
of reactive polyurethane adhesives.

Running counter to the market trend,
our sales in North America increased. An
integrated production facility for the manu-
facture of polyester raw materials and
polyurethane adhesives began operations
in the USA in the fall.

At the turn of the year, we acquired the

shares owned by the company Lord in the
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Liofol Company, USA, and in Liofol Limitada,

Brazil. This step strengthens our business
with laminating adhesives for flexible
packagings.

Engineering Adhesives (Loctite)

The worldwide slump in the electronics
industry and the cyclical downturn in the
automotive industry in the USA adversely
affected our engineering adhesives business.
While we can be satisfied that we did not
lose any market shares, the downturn in
demand since spring 2001 was further exac-
erbated by high inventories being held over
from the previous year by our customers in
the electronics and automotive sectors. This
resulted in a lack of capacity utilization,
especially in electronics production. As a
countermeasure, integration of our acquisi-
tions Dexter and Multicore was accelerated.
This went hand-in-hand with extensive

" rationalization measures such as the closure
of several production sites in the USA.

Conversely, our business with automo-

bile manufacturers in Europe developed
positively in the year under review. Overall,
sales rose by 7 percent, although this was
attributable to the specialty polymers busi-
ness acquired from Dexter toward the end

© 0f2000.

Last year, we merged our businesses
acquired in the electronics sector (Dexter,
Multicore, Power Devices) within a siﬁgle
globally active business unit. At the same
time, we launched the engineering adhe-
sives from the Dexter range, which had
previously only been marketed in America,
onto the European and Asian markets. The
new sealing cord for threaded pipe connec-
tors marketed under the product designa-
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Product groups

Industrial Adhesives and Sealants:

Bookbinding adhesives; labeling and packaging
adhesives; laminating adhesives; rubber-to-metal
bonding agents; pressure-sensitive adhesives; wood
adhesives; hygiene product adhesives; double-
glazing sealants; cable insulating compounds and
sealants; structural adhesives and sealants; shoe
adhesives; cigarette adhasives.

Engineering Adhesives:
Reactive adhesives; high-performance sealants;
sealing systems; assembly adhesives.

Surface Technologies:

Products and application systems for the chemical
surface treatment of metals and metal substitutes;
lubricants; cleaning products; corrosion inhibitors;
products for conversion processing and for the
treatment of cooling, process and wastewater;
process control and metering squipment; CFC sub-
stitutes for cleaning applications. Specialty products
for the automotive industry: potyurethane adhesives
and elastomer sealants, epoxide structural adhe-
sives, PVC and polyacrylate plastisols, dispersion
adhesives, hotmelt adhesives and corrosion
protection waxes.

tion Loctite 55 was very well received by the
European market. Encouraged by this suc-
cess, we also introduced the product in Asia
and in North and South America. In March
last year, we opened a technology center for
Loctite products in Detroit, which will
accentuate our competence in the US auto-
motive sector to even greater effect. A new
distribution center for Loctite products in
Louisville, Kentucky, provides for significant
time saving in shipments destined for our

customers in the region.
Surface Technologies

In the Surface Technologies unit, we
achieved an increase in sales of 7 percent in
the year under review. Development in the
individual regions and market segments
was, however, highly heterogeneous. The

growth in sales is attributable to our acquisi-




Henkel Technologies

tions (Atofina and Vagnone & Boeri) plus
good increases in sales in Germany and
China. In addition, the Automotive business
performed well in Benelux, as did the Indus-
try business in Central and Eastern Europe.

In North America, the cyclical downturn
and, particularly, decreasing sales figures of
the automobile manufacturers meant that
our own sales were significantly below the
level of the previous year. We also registered
sales decreases in Turkey, the Mercosul
region and in Japan owing to their various
economic difficulties.

We have responded to the negative
developments in our markets by introducing
araft of measures to increase efficiency and
keep costs under control. We successfully
concluded the integration of the acquired
metal treatment operations; however, owing
to the difficult economic situafion, the
businesses concerned did not develop as
well as expected.

Last year, innovations again made a
major contribution to our business success.
In the Automotive business unit, the empha-
sis lay on process and system solutions for
the optimization of paint lines and for
monitoring heavy metals in effluent (nano-
filtration). Our product Terokal, a structural
adhesive which stiffens the car body and
thus increases impact protection, had a
good start in the USA. Terocore, also
designed to render car bodies more rigid,
was similarly well received in the major
automobile factories of Korea. In the Indus-
try business unit, we have established a
stable base for our future success with the
corrosion inhibitor Gardac and new organic

coatings such as Granocoat and Passerite 300.

Share of Group sales: 22%

2,828
2,678
2,201
204q 2111 2570
1997 1988 1999 2000 2001
Outlook

In fiscal 2002 - its first year of operation ~
the new business sector Henkel Technolo-
gies should provide convincing evidence
of our increased efficiency following the
merger of our industrial businesses, We are
planning to increase sales by 5 percent.
Each business unit intends to optimize its
processes and enter the competitive fray
with numerous innovations. However, we
do not expect any economic recovery in our
main customer industries until the second
half of the year.

We are looking to achieve double-digit
growth in operating profit as the cost
savings introduced become fully effective,
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. 2001
, mill. eurcs
100%] Sales 13,060
| Cost of sales - 7,264
Gross profit 5,796
Marketing, selling and distribution costs - 3,695
Research and development costs =343
Administrative expenses Z768
Other operating income 246
Other operating charges Tl
Amortization of goodwill -'183
Restructuring costs -72
Exceptional items: (10) L
Gain from sale of Cognis business
before deduction of Cognis earnings attributable to purchaser 545
Gain from sale of stake o
in Henkel-Ecolab joint venture .358
Costs of special restructuring program -327
) Exceptional write-down of goodwill - 251
(7.4%)9.3%| Operating profit (EBIT) 1,210
Net income from associated companies . ’1 24
_J Net resuft from other participations 29
Net interest sxpense -304
(-10%)=12%| Financial items - 151
Earnings before tax 1,059
(-2.4%) -3.3%| Taxes onincome - 431
B Earnings after tax before deduction of Cognis earnings 628
-0.7%{ Cognis earnings attributable to purchaser 87
(4.0%) 4:1%| Net earnings 541
(2000 figures in brackets) Minority interests -39
Earnings after minority interests 502
Allocation to revenue reserves - 346
Unappropriated profit 156
Interest coverage ratio 1 .
(EBITDA + net interest expense excl. interest element of pension provisions) 8.4"
. Interest coverage ratio 2
(EBITDA +net interest expense incl. interest element of pension provisions) 51"
Liability coverage ratio 1 (porrowings + EBITDA} 1.42Y
Liability coverage ratio 2
{total of borrowings and pension provisions + EBITDA) 2.83Y
Earnings per share in surcs - ordinary shares 345
- preferred shares 3.50
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Financial Statements

Déée“nﬁ:beriji " December
1,2000 31, 2001
Intangible assets (14) - 2,045
Property, plant and equipment (15) 1,823
- Shares in associated companies 1‘,001
- Other investments 123
- Long-term loans 498
Financial assets (16) 1,622
(55.3%) 53.6% Fixed assets 5,490
Inventories (17) 1,081
Trade accounts receivable (18) 1,591
Other receivables and
miscellaneous assets (19) 467
Liquid funds/Marketable securities (20) 421
(42.1%) 3@.0"/; Current assets " 3,560
(2.6%)3.4%| Deferred tax assets (21) 5 315
(2000 figures'in brackets). -~ ~| Total assets 9,365

Sharehotders' Equity and Liabilities

Subscribed capital (22) 1374
Capital reserve (23) 'es2
Revernue reserves (24/25) | 2,449
Unappropriated profit 156
Reserves from application of IAS 39 (25) » 13
Currency translation difference (28) ' : -126
Equity excluding minority interests i ’ ‘3;518
Minority interests (27} .86
(30.8%) 38.5%| Equity including minority Interests : 3,‘60(4
‘ Provisions for pensions and | : _
v similar obligations (28) 1,641
Other provisions (29) - 1,274
Provisions for deferred tax liabilities (30) 202
(28.6%) 33.3%/| Provisions 3,117
Borrowings (31) 1,210
Trade accounts
payable (32) 937 '
Other liabilities (33) | -497
(40.6%) 28.2% Liabilities l 2,844
{2000 figures in brackets} Total equity and liabllities ' 9,365
" total dividend payout proposed by Henkel KGaA for 2001 and unappropriated. profit
Equity ratio % (equity including minerity intérests + total assets) 30.8 38.5
Gearing 1 (borrowings + equity) 0.85 0.34
Gearing 2 (total of borrowings and pension provisions + equity) 1.41 0.79

Annual Report 2001

. ( Henkel GfOUp:COﬂSOlidatedBalance Sheet (ﬁggreé in millidn‘euros)

39




Financial Statements

' Henkel Grou

(figures in million suros} - -

(see Notes 22-

Ordinary
shares

Preferred
shares

Capital
reserve

Revenue
reserves

p: Statement ‘bf»Chéng'es in Equity

Unappro- : .

priated. .’

profit

At January 1, 2000 222

152

652

2,028

131

Earnings after
minority interests -

Allocation
to reserves -

311

Distributions -

Buy-back of
treasury shares -

-63

Changes
recognized
in equity -

-44

Exchange rate
differences -

At Dec. 31, 2000/
Jan. 1, 2001 222

152

652

Earnings after
minority interests -

Allocation i
to reserves -

346

Distributions -

Buy-back of
* treasury shares -

-57

Changes
recognized
In equity -

-72

Exchange rate
differences -

At Dec. 31, 2001 222

152

652

2,449
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ancial Statements

CaSh FIOW Statement .(fi;;ures in:milli;:zn edro‘s)

Operating profit / EBIT

Cognis earnings attributable to purchaser

Income taxes paid

Depreciation/write-ups of fixed assets (excl. financial asssts)

Net gains from disposals of fixed assets (excl. financlal assets)

Changs in inventories

Change in recelvables and miscellaneous assets

Change in liabllities and provisions

Cash flow from operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities/acquisitions?

Cash flow from financing activities?

Change in cash and cash equivalents

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

Change in cash and cash equivalents due to
first-time consolidation or decansalidation of companies

Change in liquid funds and marketable securities

Liquid funds and marketabls sscurities at January 1

Liquid funds and marketable securitigs at December 31

¥ Capital expenditure on intangible asssts

Capital expenditure on property, piant and equipment

Capital expenditure on financial assets/acquisitions

Proceeds from sale of businesses

Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets

Cash flow from investing activities/acquisitions

#Henkel KGaA dividends

Subsidiary company dividends (to other shareholders)

Interest and dividends received

intersst paid

Changs in borrowings

Buy-back of treasury shares

Capital contributions by other shareholders

Other financing transactions

Cash flow from financing activities




Business Sectors

Cosmet- Adhe-

Laundry " Henket * Corpor: usinesses Businesses  Group"

& Home ics/ sives  Technol- | sold sold
\ Care  Toiletries ogles (Cognis)"  (Henkel-
Ecolab) . - ;

Sales 2001 3082 2085 1275 2828 2,679 §71 . 13,060
Change from previous year 87 % 28% =-11% 5.8% " . -6.6% 38% .22%
Proportion of Group sales 23 % 16 % 10% @ 22% 21% 7% . 100 %
Sales 2000 2,835 2,029 1,290 2,679 2,869 935 . 12,779
Qperating profit before depreclation i
and amortization (EBITDA) 2001 367 256 176 33t - 315 138 2,201
Operating profit before depreciation B
and amortization (EBITDA)} 2000 353 247 224 374 352 144 1,623
Changs from previous year? 40%  36% -214% -115% . -106% -63% ;. 356%
Return on sales (EBITDA} 2001 1.9% 123 % 13.8 % 122% 141 % 16.8 %
Return on sales (EBITDA) 2000 125 % 122 % 174 % 123 % 15.4% - 127 %

Operating profit before amortization
of goodwill (EBITA) 2001 254 210 135

200 93 " " 1643

Operating profit before amortization PRI
227 108 04,183

of goodwill (EBITA) 2000 236 183 183
Change from previous year?® 77 % 87% -263% -1M7% -102% 449 %
Return on sales {(EBITA) 2001 82 % 101 % 10.8 % 75% 98 % i 1286 %
Return on sales (EBITA) 2000 N 83% 95% 142% 79%  11.0% ;1 189%
Operating profit (EBIT) 2001 243 166 110 194 8e " 1,210,
Operating profit (EBIT) 2000 215 148 159 220 100 7 950
Change from previous year? 128% 120% -306% S17% -109% . 214 %
Return on sales (EBIT) 2001 79% 8.0 % 86 % 72% 92% 8.3 %
Return on sales (EBIT) 2000 7.6% 73%  123% .. 7.7% 107 % ;
Return on capital employed (ROCE) 20019 245% 174% 157 % 126% 260% 201 %
Return on capital smployed (ROCE) 2000% 285% 161 % 21.7 % 134% 308% . " ‘
Capital employed 2001 1,037 1,204 860 1,692 asg
Capital employed 2000 828 1,201 844 2,467 1,681 338 - 7,680
Change from previous year 253 % 0.3% 19 % 183 % <1 -53% --58% { -~ 8.6%
Capital expenditure o A g

) {excl. financial assets) 2001 165 57 91 153! 165 47 69‘3v

v Capital expenditure o ‘ :
(excl. flnancial assets) 2000 337 124 47 610 137
Operating assets 2001 1,688 1,484 999 3,112 2,023
Operating liabitities 2001 896 497 256 627 : 459
Net operating assets employed 2001 992 987 743 2,485 1,564
Operating assets 2000 1478 1501 1028 2755 . . 2,178 o
Operating liabllities 2000 670 488 261 Usgy 521 215 2,880
Net operating assets employad 2000 805 1,013 762 2174 e 1,657 326 F.." 7,058
Research and development costs (R&D) 2001 61 31 15 115 - 88
R&D as % of sales 2001 20% 15 % 11% 41 % : 25% 20% 7
Research and development costs (R&D) 2000 &1 3 14 98 ; 88 18 8
R&D as % of sales 2000 22% 1.5 % 1.1% 37% ' 24% 20% . 2.

Cognis included for 11 months in 2001 S

changes from previous year on the basis of flgures in thousand euros

EBITA as % of capital employed (nat operatmg assets incl. goodwill at cost instead of at book values)

including exceptiona writa-downs of goodwm Laundry & Home Care 24 miliion euros, Cosmetics/'l'olletnes 62 million euros, Consumer and Craftsmen
Adheslives 32 million eurcs and Henkel Technologies 133 million euros

ERCI
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Germany Europe Nerth Latin .
{excl.  America  America Pacific
Germany)/ {USA,
Africa/Mid-  Canada)
die East
Sales by location of companies 2001 2,145 4,638 1,388 487
Change from previous year? 0% 57% 7.2 % 228%
Proportion of Group sales® 3% 48 % 15 % 5%
Sales by location of companies 2000 2,145 4,387 1,296 398
Sales by location of markets 2001 1,922 4,613 1,354 512
Change from previous year? -03% 5.4 % 46 % 252 %
Proportion of Group sales 21% 49 % 14 % 5%
Sales by location of markets 2000 1,827 4,378 1,295 409
Cperating profit before depreciation
and amortization (EBITDA) 20012 1,307 379 91 18
Operating profit before depreciation
and amartization (EBITDA) 2000 377 552 123 40
Change from previous year? - =-813% -260% -55.0%
Return on sales (EBITDA) 2001 60.9 % 8.2% 66% 3.7 %
Return on sales (EBITDA) 2000 . 17.6 % 126 % 95% 101%
Operating profit before amortization
of goodwili (EBITA} 2001% 1,160 254 18 -1
Cperating profit before amortization
of goodwill (EBITA} 2000 239 442 88 ‘26
Change from previous year? - -426% -794% -
Return on sales (EBITA) 2001 541 % S5% 13% -
Return on sales (EBITA) 2000 1.2 % 10.1% 87% 6.6 %
Operating profit (EBIT) 20019 1,121 125 -113 - 36
Operating profit (EBIT) 2000 207 388 31 16
Change from previous year? - -651% - -
Return on sales {EBIT) 2001 52.3% 27% - - %, 3
Return on sales (EBIT) 2000 9.6 % 8.8% 2.4% 41% PR 70% . 8.4 %
Return on capital employed (RCCE) 2001% 82.7 % 11.8% 1.1% - 216%;, b‘ ’1‘5.'0=% ;
Return on capital smployed (ROCE) 20002 17.5 % 21.5% 66% 7.4% : 3
Capital employed 2001 1,404 2,200 1,613 486
Capital employed 2000 1,365 2,051 1,311 357
Change from previous year 28% 72% 23.0% 36.4 %
Capital expenditure {excl. financial assets) 2001 1580 191 56 44
Capital expenditure (exc!. financial assets) 2000 130 261 438 182
Operating assets 2001 1,690 3,048 1,656 534
Qperating liabilities 2001 450 1,141 256 93
Net operating assets employed 2001 1,240 1,907 1,400 441
Operating assets 2000 1,688 3,016 1,386 4“1 - -
Operating liabllities 2000 456 1,196 228 81
Net operating assets employed 2000 1,232 1,820 1,158 330

- e

percemage shares based on ccntlnumg operaﬂons d mcludmg exceptlonal items ©

Cognis included for 11 months in 2001 - ”changss'from previoué year on the. basis-of figures irl thousand eu‘"'os
EBITA as % of cap\ta( emp(cyed {net operat(ng assetsingl. gcedwt\l atcost \nstead of at book values)
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Changes |n fixed assets(fnguresmmuhoneuros)

"L % ‘Financial
|

-.asses,

At January 1, 2000

Changes in the Group/acquisitions

Additions

Disposals

Reclassifications

Translation differences

At Dec. 31, 2000/ Jan. 1, 2001

Changes in the Group/acquisitions

Additions

Disposals

Reclassifications

Translation differences

At December 31, 2001

Accumulated depreciation

assets

ancial
asséts ¢

At January 1, 2000

Changes in the Group/acquisitions

Write-ups

Depreciation and amortization

Disposals

Reclassifications

Translation differences

At Dec. 31, 2000 / Jan. 1, 2001

Changes in the Group/acquisitions

Write-ups

Depreciation and amortization

Disposals

Reclassifications

Transiation differences

At December 31, 2001

Fixed assets (net) at December 31, 2001

Fixed assets {net) at December 31, 2000

Depreciation and amortization in 2001: Scheduled

Exceptional

Depreciation and amortization in 2000: Scheduled

Exceptional




(ﬁgures in million euros, rounded up or down'as appropnate unless stated othervwse)

General information .

*--The consolidated finaneial statements of Henkel l(GaA have been drawn up in accordance
with the requirements of the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), London.

" With regard to comphance w1th the Internauonal Accountmg Standards (IAS}issued
‘by the lnternattonal Accountlng Standards Commtttee (the Board’s predecessor), which are

# still'in force,.all the Standards have been observed thch are compulsory as of December 31,

2001, usiless otherwise 1ndlcated inthe Notes to the consohdated financial statements of
Henkel KGaA or in the Auditors’ Report

The financial statements of companies included in the consolidation have been audited
by members of the KPMG organization or by.otherindependent firms of auditor$ instructed
accordingly. _The ﬁnancral statements are all drawn-up at the same accounting date as those

©of Henl(el KGaA Financial statements for the Cogms sul}groups and Henkel-Ecolab joint

: venture busmesses sold were drawn upas of November 30,:2001..

‘ In order to 1mprove the clar1ty and mformauve value of the financial statements,
certain items have been combmed in the balance sheet or in the statement of income and
shown separately in. the Notes The followmg items are shown separately in the statement

" of 1ncome because the1r 1mpact is. materlal ’
L 0 -research and development costs

‘e amortlzauon of goodwrll,

e restructurmg costs L
LB ,exceptlonal 1tems . o .
fIn the segment mformatlon tables the comparatlve ﬁgures for the prevrous year have been

- 'brought mto hne w1th he new structure descrtbed in the Management Report This grves

o a bétter pmture of the net asset‘ ﬁnancral posmon and results of operauons of the newly

structured segments and of the)Group

Companies Included in the consoludahon

' “There Have beefs srgmﬁcant changes i the composmon of the Group during 2001 compared

‘w1th the prewous year

3 Cogms) carved out in- 1999 mcludrng all compames m the Cognls

‘he close ofbusmess on November 30 2001 to a group ofm

,_vestors compnsmg Permlra GS " »apltal Partners and Schroder Ventures Llfe Sciences. Asa -

: _result of thrs dxsposal a total of 41 compam“ have left the Henkel Group asof. November 30,

. 2001 and are no longer cluded in. the consolldatron Untll November 30, 2001, Cognls was

B an mdependent operatlon Chetmcal Products } as part of the Henkel Group

. The enterpnse value for the Cogms group was, 2, 500 mllhon euros. Net.of certaln liabilities,

. provrsrons and other deductlons the selhng I nce came to 1, 396 rmlhon euros. After ‘deducting

'the equlty capltal of the Cogms group amounu g to 838 mtlhon euros (mcludmg 87 mxlhon

euros representmg the proporuon of net earmngs attnbutable to purchaser).and transacuon

. costs and taxes amounung to 150 rmlllon euros the net gam on sale came to 308 mrllton euros.
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This calculation of the gain on sale does not include items.6f goodwill written off against
revenue reserves in 1986 in accordance with the regulations of the German Commercial Code,
which would by now have a residual value of around 200 milliorl eurds. To help finance the
transactmn Henkel KGaA ‘advanced a loan of 350 million euros to the purchaser in the form of
a so—called vendor note wnh a maximum redemption period of 10 years. Interest on the loan is
‘payable at 7.percent per annum for the first three years and thereafter at an annual 16 percent.

- The vendor note is 1nc1uded in “long-termloans” under ﬁnancxal assets.

Henkel Ecolab joint venture

The Henkel-Ecolab Jomt venture set up in partnersh1p with Ecolab Inc., USA, in 1991 has
been sold to EcolabInc. as at the close of business on November 30, 2001. Henkel-Ecolab is
the market:leader for cleaning and hygiene systems in Europe. Its range extends from
cleaning products and sanitary cleansers to ¢léaning machines and services. Its customers

. include hotels, restaurants; hospitals, commercial laundries and companies in the food

* and drinks indusn'"y‘
Effect of exceptlonal items on items in the statement of income
’ Contmumg P i L Excepti 3 Group
: operatlons
S ‘ 2001 ' 20007 - 2001 20001 2001
Sales 12,779 13,080
QOperating profit (EBIT)
before disposals and
before exceptional items 885
Gain from sale of Cognis business i
before deduction of Cognis earnings o
attributable to purchaser 545 - 545
Gain from sale of s
share in Henkel-Ecolab ’ -
joint venture 358 - 358
Costs of special . L
restructuring program =827 ¢ aeo ] =327
K Exceptional write-down P -
' of goodwill =251 ¢ - ~251
Operating profit (EBIT) :
after disposals
and after exceptional items . 325 1,210
b 5
Eamings befors tax 325 |- [ 71,059
Taxes on income
before disposals . - 258
Taxes on disposals of Lo
Cognis and Henkel-Ecolab -226 " - 226
Tax credit from the o
special rastructuring program B3, 53
Cognis earnings i
attributable to purchaser IR Y 14
Net sarnings '505| 541

» before reinvestment of proceeds received frorn the sale of busmesses
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The selling price was 484 million euros.The sale was coupled with an-option g1v1ng
Henkel the nght to exchange its shares in the joint venture either for shares in Ecolab Inc.

or for a cash payment by Ecolab Inc. Henkel KGaA opted for the cash payment and can

acquire new shares in Ecolab Inc. inthe market to take its. 1nterest in EcolabInc. to the max-

: 1mum 35 percent stlpulated under th‘ "‘terms of the stockh lder agreement(After deductmg

E _the approprrate propomon of! equn'y (121 rmlhon euros) and transacnon costs, the EBIT fig-

‘ ure has a net gain of 358 rmlhon euros: After deducting taxes of 76 million euros the net”

gain on sale amounts to 282 million euros.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Effect of the sale of Cognis and of the Henkel-Ecolab joint venture on items in the balance sheet

Businesses sold:-

Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment

Financial assets

Fixed asssts

Current assets

Deferred taxes

Total asssts

Equity excluding minority interests

Minority interests

Equity including minority interests

Provisions

Liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Effect of the sale of Cognis and of the Henkel-Ecolab joint venture on items

Cash flow from operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities

»Apart from Henkel KGaA and its, branch operatlon m Genthm the consolldated ﬁnanc1al

: staternents‘ nclu e 26 domestlc and 259, forelgn cornpame‘_ in whrch Henkel KGaA. holds

g rnent control of Henke] KGaA

d1rectly or 1nd1rectly,

& m orlty of the votmg rlghts or whlch are; under the umﬁed manage—
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The investments in The Clorox Company, Oakland, California, and Ecolab Inc., St. Paul,

Minnesota (both in the USA) are accounted for by the équity method.
One domestic and 12 foreign companies have been included in the consolidated Group

figures for the first time.

Important companies included in the consolidation for the first time

Name Group Acguisi- .- Sales 1. Business
sharehold- tion mill. euros :
ing % cost" :
mill. euros .
Turco Technologies {from April 1) 100 74 000 Techriologies
QAQ Pemos (from January 172 51 19 31 Detergents

" purchaée price including bank borrowings less liquid funds taken over
2 From De¢. 1, 2001: 34 percent additionally acquired )

Effect of companies included for the first time on items in the balance sheet

Fixed assets

Current assets

Debt

The list of shareholdings owned by Henkel KGaA and by the Henkel Group is filed with
the Commercial Register at the Municipal Court in Disseldorf under number B 4724 and

will also be on diéplay at the Annual Gener;l Meeting.

Cvonsolid'ation principles e
' Cormnpanies are included in the consolidation by setting off their book values against their
assets and liabilities (the purchase method). Any differences remaining éfter making fair -
vé]ue édjustments to the assets and liabilities are showﬂ as goodwill and amortized on a
systerndtic basis. . '
The same procedure is adopted for investments accounted for by the equity method, any
X : existing goodwill being included in the equity valuations of the companies concerned, The
contribution which these companies make to earnings - including amortization of goodwill
s recqgnizea in net income from participations in the consolidated statement of income.
Sales, income and expenses and all accounts receiQable and payable between companies
included in the consolidation are set off against each other. Intercompany profits on fixed
“assets or inventories, supplied by other.companies in the Group are eliminated for consolida-
tion purposes. ImraGroup supplies-are made on the basis.of market or other transfer prices.
Defefrec:l taxation, calculated at the average rate of tax chargeable on prbﬁfs'of the Group,

is accrued on consolidation procedures affecting net earnings.
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" Currency translation

‘ ~The financial statements pf companies included in‘the consolidation are trémslated into
‘euros using fhe “functional currency” method outlined ini IAS 21. As the functional cur-
_rency is nearly, alwaysr the"-local'currency of the coinpany concerned, assets and liabilities

are translated. at the mid rates ruling at ‘the Balance shget date, income and expense items
atkaverage rates for the year. ‘Différe‘rlces c(omp;_xredeith using yearend rates are taken to
equity and shown separately as “Currency translation difference” without affecting
earnings, . ‘ '

Companies in countries with high rates of inflation draw up their financial statements
either in euros or in US dollars in order to eliminate the éffects of inflation. The exchange
adjustments are included in the determination of net earnings by the tempbral method.

» Foreign currency accounts receivable and payable in the Group have been translated
at clésing year-end rates of exchange. The following exchange rates have been used for cur-

rency translation purposes:

180 cods - Avér‘agej rate’ in euros " Closing rate In euros

B ' 2001 0. 2000 [ 2001

4 British pound aBP BT Te043 ] 16420
100 Swiss francs CHF 86:19 656986 | 67.4082
100,000 Turkish lira . TRL 2047 0.0 7 01608 0.0784
1 Brazilian real : ..BRL .0:59‘1':‘ ) ’0.47"3" 085207~ 0.4866
100 Japanese yen Y 100 ase | ogasa - o0sees
100 Mexican pesos CMXN: wat | 11.9371:‘,“‘11”{2107:[‘ 7123658
1US doflar ‘ UsD igoﬂa‘;e"« ‘ 112 0747 11334
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Notes to the Statement of Income

(1) Sales

A breakdown of sales'by business sector and'geographiéal region compared with the previ-
olis year is-shown in the tables on pages 42 and 43. The segment information is part of the
Notés to'the consolidated finaricial statements. Sales are recognized when the goods or

services havebeen supplied and the risk transferred.

(2) Costof sales '~

jThe manufactutmg costof products sold and the purchase «cost of merchandlse sold are
:shown under this: headmg R T AN
[n addmon to the costs dxrectly attrxbutable such as. materlals labor and energy costs,

these,also mclude overheads (mcludmg depremanon).

{3) Merketing, selling and distribution costs

These include the costs of the marketing organization, of distribution, advertising-and
market research, and of apphcanons advisory services for customers, as well as amounts

: written off accounts réceivable (2001 41 million euros; 2000:.24 million euros)

- (4) Rasearch and development costs

"This heading comprises the costs of research and of product and process development.
Résearch as well as development costs are expensed in full'as incurred, because the require-

ments for them to be capitalizéd set out in IAS 38 “Intangible Assets” are not met.

_{8) Administrative.expenses’

This heading includes the personnel and non-personnel costs of the administration depart-

tnents,.and miscellaneous taxes.

( 8) Other operating income

" The increase in other operating income in 2001 is attributable in particular to.gains from
the'sale of real estate and brand-name and trademark rights, and from the divestment of
activities as part of"the process of streamlining our business portfolio. The gains from the
sale of Cogﬁis and of the Henkel-Ecolab joint venture are shown separately as exceptional

" items. .
’ Cther operéting revenue includes income not relating to the period under review,

.insurance vpéyments,‘foreigu exchange gains from operatiﬁg activities, and refunds.

Other operating income

Gains on disposal of fixed assets 98
Income from release of provisions 15
income from release of bad debt reserves ]
Other operating revenue 127

246
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{ 7 ) Other operating charges
L Other operating charges iriclude amounts provided for services to be rendered to customers
under guarantee and for the sake of customer goodwill. for leasehold payments, and for
foreign.exchange losses incurred in connection with operating activities. In-the year under
review and-in thefpre_vious year the ﬁgures under this heading also include contributions ’

to'the compensation fund set up by German-industry for the victims of forced labor.

(8} Amortization of goodwill

The increase'in. the amornzatlon charge on goodwill is malnly dueto acqursmons but also
to exchange rate movements Exceptional wrlte{lowns were mcluded under this heading in
the prev10us year. The exceptlonal wrxte-downs charged on goodwill in the year under

‘review are shown under the heading “Exceptional items”.

(9 ) Restructuring costs

] Tlus headmg comprises the expense of early ret1rement schemes, and ofplant or business
closures elther already effected or approved and announced The costs of the special
i restructurmg program “Strong for the Future are shown separately (see Note' 10 on excep-

‘tional 1tems)

{10} éxceptional items

' The EBIT figure for 2001 has been niaterially'affected by the following exceptional items:
[ Sale of the Cognis business .
Starting‘f’romﬁ the enterprise value 02,500 million euros, a total of 1,104 million euros has
to b‘e deducted fof cornmitments for pensions, health care and similar obligations taken

7 over by the purchaser (565 million euros) for borrowmgs by Cognis- companres from other.

. companles in-the Group (391 rmlhon euros) and for other reductions (148 million euros)
glvmg a purchase prrce of 1, 396 million:euros for the equ1ty After deducting the balance
sheet equity-of 750 million euros (adJustecl for the Cognis earnmgs attributable to purchas-
er of 87 million euros) and transactlon costs amounting to 30:million euros together with
miscellanecus selling expenses, the net effect on EBIT amounts to 545 million euros. The
figure. of 565 mllllon euros for pens1ons health care and similar obhgatlons includes an

o arnount of 139 million euros as follows:
Under an mternal arrangement as part of the carve-out of the Chemical Products business
sector w1th effect from January'1, 1999, the then Cognis Deiitschland GmbH, Diisseldorf,
undertook to indemnify Henkel KGaA in respect of obligations towards employees who had
already retired priof to January 1, 1999, or-had left the company’s employment with vested
future pension rights and had been engaged in the Cheical Products business sector. Fol-
“lowing thé sale of the Cognis group on November 30, 2001, this indemnification in respect

of these obligations was taken over by Cognis Deutschland GmbH & Co. KG, Diisseldorf.

. The Henkel Group's obligations and the associated indemnification rights amounted to

* 139 million euros at December 31,2001 and are classified as long-term loans in the balance

sheet,

@b Annual Repart 2001 51




Notes to the Financial Statements

.52

[ Sale of share’in the Henkel Ecolab joint Venture

The purchase pnce paid amounted to 484 mllhon euros the appropnate propomon of the
eqmty (121 million euros) as s well as transaction anvd other costs amounting to 5 million

eufos ‘have to be deducted 1eaviﬁg a net effect on EBIT of 358 millicn euros.

@ - :Special restructuring program “Strong for'the Future

This program comprlses arange of restructumng measures in the form of producnon plant

closures, cutbacks in the workforce and excepnonal wrxte-downs It is aimed at strengthen-

ing the competmveness of the producuon marketing and adrmmstratxon activities of the
Henkel Group and involves total costs of 327 mﬂ'hon euros.

® . Review of goodwill » v

As'part ofa comprehensive review we have reassessed the recoverable amount of our pur-
chased goodwill. Where there is evidence of impairment owing to changed conditions we
have recognized an impairment loés. Recoverable amounts have been determined on the

basis of estimated future cash flows, Goodwill written off as a result totaled 251 million

euraos.

( 11) Financial items

Net income from participations

Net income from associated companies SR lw.'1561-) 124

The 20’0‘1ﬁgure includes special charges of 35 million euros (2000: 3 million euros)in con-

_nection ‘with our participation in The Clorox Company These figures réepresent Henkel's

: sharé- ofthe cost of restructurmg the First Brands acquisitior (treated by Clorox as an ex-

traordinary item in its own financial statements). Starting in fiscal 2002 (accountmg period

V,begmmng July 1, 2001) Clorox has taken advantage of 2 new US GAAP regulation and is no

Net resuit from other participations

longer amortizing, goodwill. Under the equity method of valuation used by the Henkel

Group, an amount of 6 million-euros has been charged against earnings in.respect of the

proportion of amortization of goodwill attributable to our participation in the company.

Income from participations

in affiliated companies

in other companies 3
Income from profit and loss transfer agreements 1
Gains on disposal of financial assets and marketable securities 26
Write-downs on shares in affillated and other companies !
and on markstable securities =1.

29
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{ 12) Taxes on income

Interest and similar income

from affiliated companies

from others 18 20
Other financial income 21, 38
Interest charges payable o

to affiliated companies 29} -

to others -181
Qther financial charges -58.
Write-downs on long-term loans = =1
Interest element of amounts allocated to pension provisions = 1 10 ~121

~301. - 304

Net income from participations 156‘_“’ 124
Net result from other participations B 11 29
Net interest expense ~a01tl - 304

C-134 1 - 151

Earnings before tax and breakdown of taxes

Earnings before tax 816~ 1,058
Current taxes 134 498
Deferred taxes ~28 . -85

A 431

Taxes on income
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Allocation of deferred taxes

: :Déférfre._cjr taassets ol ;Defe;[é:i, tax liabilities

e ,‘Dec. 31 v

Patents/Licenses

Goodwill

Property, plant and equipment

Financial assets

Inventories

Other receivables and miscellanecus assets

Special tax-allowable items

Provisions
Liabilities o4
{ Tax credits z
Loss carry-forwards -
354
Amounts netted - 182 .

Valuation allowances

Balance shest figures

'fprobablhty must be more

,':plans The valuatwn allowanc

'hzed in'the future Defe red taxes have ot been recogm ed in respect of loss carry forwards

amountmg to 193 m1lhon euros“

{200 281 mllhon uros)
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Expiry dates of unused tax loss carry-forwards

: L. Dec, Dec. 31,
2001
Must be utilized within:

1 year 28
2 years 28
3 years 52
more than 3 years 172
Carry forward without restriction 29

309.

Anumber of,;hénges to German corporatioﬁ tax legislation came into effect in 2001.
The imputation system in force up to the end of 2000 was replaced by a new system under
which shareholders are taxed on only half their dividend income and companies pay a
fixed tax rate of 25 percent plus a solidarity surcharge (éurrently 5.5 percent). Together
with municipal trade tax, the tax rate for Henkel KGaA is expected to be 40 percent
(ZCOO: 45 percent). '

£ Calculation of effective tax rate

Earnings before tax

Tax rate (incl. municipal trade tax) on income of Henkel KGaA in %

Estimated tax charge

Lower taxes in foreign countries

Tax reductions owing to tax-free income
and other items

Tax increases owing to non-deductible
expenses and other items

Total tax charge

Effective tax rate %

s 40.7"

The effective tax rate for 2001 is influenced by the exceptioﬁal items (goodwill write-downs and spe-
cial restructuring program). Without those charges the tax rate would be around 35 percent.

(13} Minority interests

The amount shown here represents the share of profits and losses attributable to other share-
holders. The share of profits amounted to 62 million euros {2000: 63 million euros) and that of

losses was 23 million euros (2000: 26 million euros). .
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NOteS tO the Balance Sheet (ﬂgures |n million éuros unless stated otherwise)

Fixedasse'ts‘ . . ol e :

' . " Fixéd ‘assets subject fo weat and tear Afe de'p‘reciate& éxclﬁsively by the straight line method

E on the-basts of estimiated dseful lives standardlzed throughout the Group, unscheduled
deprecxauon being charged where Tiecessdry.

“ The followmg standard useful lives, most'of whlch are unchanged continue to be used

asthe basm for calculating deprecxanon and amortization for Group reportmg purposes:

Trademarks, licenses, patents

Goodwill

Residential buildings

Office buildings

Research and factory buildings, workshops, stores and staff buildings

Operating installations

Machinery

Office equipment

Vehicles

Factory and research equipment

o ) ( 14) Intanglble assets: -

Assets acquu‘ed for valuable con51derat10n are mcluded under thlS headmg The addltlons to

patents hcenses and sxrmlar rlghts re]ate to normal busmess actmues and the cornpames h

and busmesses acquu‘ed m 2001 B

“Goodill

At January 1, 2000

Changes in the Group/acquisitions

Additions

Disposals

Reclassifications

Translation differences

At Dec. 31, 2000 / Jan. 1, 2001

Changes in the Group/acquisitions

Additions

Disposals

Reclassifications

Translation differences

At December 31, 2001




Accumulated amortization

Notes to the Financial Statements

. Paterits/ .Go’odwvill"j«' - Total
. - Licenses R ORI
1 At January 1, 2000 ‘ Toaar . ..860
7 : Changes in the Group/acquisitions e o 1 ‘ ' 8
Amortization . 59 ‘ 242
Disposals 36 149
Reclassifications ‘ PR e
Translation differences ’ : 24
At Dec. 31, 2000 / Jan. 1, 2001 . '1,085
Changes in the Group/acquisitions . =31 C=44
Amortization® ) 512 '
Disposals 371
Reclassifications -
Translation differences 42
At December 31, 2001 w 1,224
Bool‘( values {net) at December 31, 2001 2,048,
Book values {net) at December 31, 2000 S ,’-2,602
' 272

" including exceptional write-downs

{15} Pfoperty, plant and equipment:

U The values of property, ﬁiaut and'equipment have changed as follows:

Land, Plant and
land rights = machinery-.
and S
buildings

onagcount’
and aésets

At January 1, 2000

Changes in the Group/acquisitions

Additions

Disposals

Reclassifications

Translation differences

At Dec. 31, 2000 / Jan. 1, 2001

Changes in the Group/acquisitions

Additions

Disposals

Reclassifications

Translation differences

At December 31, 2001
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Accumulated depreciation

Land, Plantand - :Pzg"y“ecitér’dﬁl 4 Total -
land rights machinery ] -
and
buildings
At January 1, 2000 848 A ] Vi1 4,240
Changes in the Group/acquisitions 32 ‘ ' 188
Write-ups - oA
Depreciation 69 432
Disposals 39 ) 294
Reclassifications 1 =
Translation differences 9 750'"'
At Dec. 31, 2000 / Jan. 1, 2001 920 b ‘ LoE 4615
Changes in the Group/acquisitions - 258 ‘ ‘ .
Write-ups - 2.
Depreciation 95 481
Disposals 31 226
Reclassifications -1 -
Transiation differences . 6 » /5 - 18
At December 31, 2001 731 X 4 /861 4 - 2,925
Book values (net) at December 31, 2001 830 ‘; " 693 ' 101 v‘ 1,828
Book values (net) at December 31, 2000 1,176 - E CLoAeil ez

Addrtlons are valued at purchase or manufacturing cost. The latter 1ncludes direct costs

and approprlate proportxons of overheads interest charges on borrowings are not included.

Cost fighiréstare shown net of 1nvestment grants and allowances. Deprectatron is charged

' over the penods of useful life: shown on page 56. Scheduled depreciation of 409 mllhon

"v_‘euros was charged on property plant and equrpment m 2001 (2000: 407 mtlhon €uros, see

) :also page 44) plus exceptwnal deprec1atlon of 72 mxlllon euros (2000 25 mllhon euros)

( 16 ) Financial-assets .

Flnancral ﬁxed assets are: -shown at cost.or at therr lower actual value where applicable. Qur
assocrates The Clorox Company and Ecolab Inc, are accounted for by the equ1ty method in

the consohdated financial statements at the approprrate proportion of their net assets (see

! also Note 48).

We calculate our percentage shareholdmg on the ba51s of shares outstandrng The up-
dated net asset ﬁgure is translated at the xmd rate of exchange in force on the balance sheet )
date The stocks market value of our partrcrpatrons accounted for at equrty amounted to
4,475 mtlhon euros at December 31 2001 (2000 3,894 m1lhon euros)

The long term loans mclude a vendor note for 352 mrlllon euros mcludmg interest. This

o was granted to the purchasers of Cogms for a terrn of 10 years Interest is payable on’ the

b loan at the rate of 7 percent per annum for the ﬁrst three years and thereafter atan - -
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Affiliated
companies

associated -

. companies

Notes to the Financial Statements

a8

At January 1, 2000
Changes in the Group/acquisitions -21
Additions 14
Disposals -
Reclassifications -
Translation differences -
At Dec. 31, 2000/ Jan. 1, 2001 31
Changes in the Group/acquisitions -6
Additions 1
Disposals -
Reclassifications -1
Translation differences -
.1 At December 31, 2001 ‘25
Affliated " Shares iri.
- companies- _assoclated
‘companies
At January 1, 2000 4 '
Changss in the Group/acquisitions -2
Write-ups -
Write-downs -
Disposals -
Reclassifications -
Translation differences -
At Dec. 31, 2000 / Jan. 1, 2001 2
Changes in the Group/acquisitions 2
Write-ups -
Write-downs -
Disposais -
Reclassifications -
Translation differences -
At December 31, 2001 4
Book values (net) at December 31, 2001 21

Book values (net) at December 31, 2000 29
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(17 ) inventories

Inventories are valued at,vpurcha‘se‘ or ménufactﬁring‘cost; using FIFO and the average
method » v
Any valuations which are too hlgh compared with lower market values at the balance
.shieet date are marked down to the approprrate level accordmgly Manufacturmg cost in-
: clides=in addition to drrect costs ~ approprlate proportlons of necessary ¢ overheads (e.g:
the goods’ mwards department raw materials store; ﬁllmg and other costs prlor to the
' ﬁmshed product store) as well as admmrstratrve expenses and pension costs for employees
engaged in the production process and production-related deprecxanon charges. Interest
charges incurred during the period of manufacture, on the other hand, are not included.
Inventories included in the balance sheet at their lower net realizable value (which in the
case of ﬁnished products is derived from their market value) totaled 31 million euros at
December 31, 2001 (2000; 66 million euros).
) The inventory total has gone do% by '530 million euros. Changes in the Group led
to a reduction of 648 million euros and exchange rate fluctuations were responsible for an

increase of 8 miltion euros.

Breakdown of inventories

Dec. 31, Dec. 31,

12000, 2001

Raw materials and supplies ST e " a22
Work in process 56
Finished products and merchandise 689
Payments on account of merchandise 14
. 71,081

{ 18 ) Trade accounts receivable

Accounts receivable from customers are shown at their full nominal value.

Specrﬁc r1sks assocrated with, trade accounts recervable are covered by appropriate
valuanoxr allowances: In:addition, Group regulations based on past experiencerequire
an’ allowance of atleast 50 percent to be provided on third phrty accounts which are
90 days 6verdue whilst aécounts which are 180 days overdue are provided for in full.
A total of 41 mlllxon euros has been prowded inthe forrn of valuation allowances

(2000 24 million euros).
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i

Accounts receivable from affiliated companies

(including those with a residual term of mors than 1 ysar)

Accounts receivable from other companies
in which participations are held

{including those with a residual term of more than 1 year)

Miscesllaneous assets

(including those with a residual term of more than 1 year)

Deferred charges

Other réceivables and ‘mis.cellaneous assets are shown at their full nominal or attributable
fair value. Any risks.associated with them are covered by valuation allowances. Miscella-
neous assetscor'nprise‘mainly the following:

claims for tax Tefunds 85 million euros (2000: 91 million euros);

amounts receivable from employees 16 million euros (2000: 26 million euros);
ar;lounts receivable from suppliers 26 million euros (2000: 33 million euros);
insurance claims 11 million euros {2000:13 million eﬁros)‘;

security and guarantee'deposits 17 million eufos (2600: 17 million euros);

payments made-on account 38 millioﬁ 'e‘uros (ZIOQO: 26 million euros); and

derivative assets linked to fore'ign, 'cur:ehcy risks 11 million euros (2000: 0 million euros)
in accc’)rdénce;with 1AS 39: '

The debt discount of 0.3 millién euros-(2000: 6 million euros) included in deferred charges

is written off on a schediled basis ea_cﬁ year over the term of the underlying liability.

{20} Liquid funds and marketable securities

v j Liquid funds and marketable securities

| Dec.31:i - Dec. 81,

2000 2001

Liquid funds T 218
Marketable securities ; 218 203
T s8¢ 421

Marketable securities are valued at their fair values at the balance sheet date. They comprise
mainly short-term mioney market instruments. Price movements are recognized in the state-

ment of income under financial items.
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{ 21) Deferred tax assets

Shareholders' equity

This heading comprises _deferred tax assets taken over from the individual company balance
sheets, iééulting from the folloWihg factors: )
(] timing differences between the balance sheet valuation of an asset or liability and
its tax base, o o
® tax losses carried forward which are expected to be reversed; and
¢ consolidation procedures at Group level,
_ The allocation of deferred tax assetsto the various balance sheet headings is shown

under Note 12 (Taxes on income).

( 22 ) Subscribed capital

The eqﬁity of the Henkel Group consists of the subscribed capital, capital reserve, revenue re-
‘serves, unappropriated profit, the reserve from the application of IAS 39, and currency differ-

ences on translation.

Annual Report 2001

o Dec: 31,
. 2001
Ordinary bearer shares j ‘ 222
Preferred bearer shares 1.52:1!\ ’ 152
Capital stock i 374} 374

" Divided into 86,598,625 ordinary shares and 59,387 625 preferréd shares”

Subscribed capital

» 992,680 preferred shares bought back in 2000 snd 808,120 in 2001;
total treasury stock 1,800,800 shares . ;

A resolution of shareholders adopted at the Annual General Meeting held on April 28, 1997,
approved a conditional increase of 5 million euros in the Company’s capital in the form of two
million non-voting preferred bearer shares. The conditional increase will only be implemented

to the extent that the ho]dérs of option rights attached to convertible warrant bonds to be

“fssued by Henkel KGaA up 1o April 27, 2002, exercise those rights.

Atthe Annual General Meeting of Henkel KGaA held on April 30, 2001, the personally

liable members were authorized - subject to the approval of the Shareholders’ Committee and

of the Supervisory Board ~ to increase the capital of the Company in one or more instalments

at any time up to May 1, 2006, by up to a total of 25,600,000 euros by issuing new non-voting
preferred shares to be paid up in cash (“authorized capital”).The personally liable members
wérg authoriiéd - alwayS suﬁject to the approval of the Shareholders’ Committee and of the
Supervisory Board - to exclude the statutory pre-emptive rights of existing shareholders.
Pre-emptive rights may only be excluded, however, for fractional entitlements or on condition
that the issue price for the new shares is not signiﬁcanr.ly less than the quoted market price of
shares of the same category at the time when the issué price is finally fixed.

At the Annua) General Meeting held on April 30, 2001, the personally liable members

were authorized to purchase ordinary.or preferred shares of the Company not exceeding

- 10-percent of the capital stock, i.e. up t0.14,598,625 shares, at any timeup to October 30, 2002.
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The personally liable managmg members were authonzed - subj ectto the'approval of
the Shareholders’ Committee and of the Supemsory Board - to dispose of treasury shares
acquired; mthopt first offering them to existing shareHolders, by.

) offermg and transferring them to membets of the Management Board and certain exec-
ttive management personnyel of thé Company and to members of the management boards
and certain executive management personnel of certain affiliated companies in Germany
and abroad under the terms of the “Stock Incentive Program of the Henkel Group”, or
[ sellmg‘them to third parties for the purpose of acquiring businesses, parts of businesses
or participating interests in businesses or for forming business combinations. Insofar as
members of the Management'Boérd‘ of the Company are among those eligible to participate

" in the Stock Incentive Program, the Shareholders‘ Committee i's authorized ~ subject to the
approval of the Supervisory Board = to arrange the offer and transfer of the shares.

The personally liable membets were also authorized ~ subject to the approval of the
Shareholders’ Committee and of the Supervisory Board - to cancel the treasury shares with-
out any ﬁirther resclution in General Meeting being required.

Treasury stock held by the Company at December 31, 2001 amounted to 1,800,800 pre-
ferred shares: This represents 1.23 percent of the capital stock a proportional nominal value
of 4:6 million euros. 9921680 shares were bought back in 2000 and 808,120 in.2001.

Af average ‘price‘of 69.95 euros per share was paid for the 808,120 preferred shares of
the Company bought back in the year under review (compared with 63.09 euros per share
for 992,680 shares boﬁght backin 2000), representing’a proportional nominal value of
2.1 million euros (0.’5”5 percent of the capital stock). The total purchase price amounts to

/120 million euros. The shares were acquired for the purposes stipulated under the terms of
the above-mentioned authorization to acquire treasury shares, in particular to be able to

satisfy stock ‘optio'ns issued under the Stock Incentive Program of the Henkel Group.

(23) Capltal reserve
The cdpital reserve comprises the amounts received in previous years in excess of the nomi-

nal value of preferred shares and convertible warrant bonds issued.

(24 ) Revenue reserves

The revenue reserves amount to 2,449 million ewuros. They include:
@  amounts allocated in the, ﬁnancial statements of Henkel KGaA in previous years;
e amounts allocated from consolidated net earnings of the Group;
® theearnings of consohdated compames less the interests of minority shareholders
therein; s .
.. changeérin consplidatidn'items and m the compésition of the Group which affect
earnings;
@  the effects of conversion to the euro; :
‘0 ‘buyAback of treaSury shares by Henkel KGaA.
This heading also comprises changes in the equity valuation of our participation, in Clorox.
which are taken dlrecﬂy to equity. They result from share buy-backs and exchange rate fluc-

tuanons at Clorox.
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( 25 ) Application of 1AS 39

This heading comprises the changes recognized in equity owing to the first-time application

of the IAS 39 Standard “Fine‘mcvialllnstrumez;ts: Retqgnition an_d Measurémenr}".

(26} Currency translation difference - = 7~ o
‘ ’ Differences on translation of the annual financial statéments of foreign companies are
shown under a separate 'equi’ty heading. Owing to-the 'exch‘ange rate strength of the US dol-
lar, the Japanese yen aha the British.pound, the total under this heading at December 31,
2001 was 66 million euros less (2000: 45 million eitros less) than at the end of the previous
year.

{ 27 } Minority interests

This heading comprises partners' shares in 2 number of companies included in the consoli-

dation, primarily in Asia.

(28/29 ) Provisions for pensions.and similar obligations / Other provisions

Changes in 2000

Balance Special Utilized . Balance
Jan. 1, circum-~ Dec. 31,
. 2000 stances 2000

Pravisions for pensions .
and similar obligations 1,871 25 78 > 1,984
Tax provisions 354 4 243 236
Sundry provisions 805 18 732 . 840
1,159 22 975 1,076

Changes in 2001

Balance Special Utilized Balance
Jan. 1, clreum- Dec. 31,
2001 stances 2001
Provisions for pensions
and similar obligations 1,984 - 408 83 1,641
Tax provisions 236 -18 104 382
Sundry provisions 840 -235 439 848
Special restructuring program - ~ - 244
1,076 - 253 543 1,274
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Employees of companies included in the consolidation have entitlements under Company
pension schemes which are either defined contibution or defined benefit plans. These have

* different forms dependmg on the legal financial and tax regime in each country. The level of
benefits prov1ded is based on the length of employmentand earnings of the person entltled

The defined conmbunon plans are structured in such a way that the Company pays

. contributions to public or prlvate sector institutions on the basis of statutory or contractual
terms or on a voluntary basis and has no further obligation regarding the payment of bene
fits to’the employee The amount charged against the operating profit for the period in re-

* spect of contributions paid totaled 18'million euros in the Group as a whole (2000: 17 mil- -
lion euros). With reference to the businesses sold, the amount for Cognis was 4 million
euros (2000: 5 million euros) and for Henkel-Ecolab 2 million euros (2000: 2 million euros).

'I"he Group's obligations under defined benefit plans are shown in the above table ar
“pensions and similar obligations”. The “special circumstances” column 'shows theveffects of
changes in the composition of the Group and exchange rate fluctuations.

. Provisions for pensions and similar obligations are calculated at the present value of
the future obligations {the projected unit credit method). This actuarial method of calcula-
tion takes future trends iri wages, salaries and retirement benefits into account. For
Germény, the calc'ulation is based on trends of 3:0 percent (2000: 3.0 percent) for Wages
yand salanes 1. S percent (2000 1.5 percent) for retirément benefits, and a drscount rate
of 5 75 percent (2000 6 percent) In other countrres the equrvalent factors depend on local

: :condmons in the country concerned

The Group S pensron and srmrlar obhgatrons are shown in.the following tables:

Pension and similar obligations at December 31, 2000

Present value of obligations not covered by fund assets

Present value of obligations covered by fund assets

Present value of defined benefit obligations

Market value of fund assets

Miscellaneous

Unrecognized actuarlal gains/losses

Provisions for pensions and similar cbligations
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Pension and similar obligations at December 31, 2001

_,Germarly;‘;» )

Present value of obligations not covered by fund assets

Present value of abligations covered by fund assets

Present value of defined benefit obligations

Market value of fund assets

Miscellaneous

Unrecognized actuarial gains/losses

Provisions for pensions and similar obligations

'not exceed’lo percent of the present value of the

obhgatrons are not recogmzed i the ﬁnancra s aternents Those m excess of 10 percent at

the end of the prevmus repo mg perzod are s read over the average remammg workmg

T l1ves of the employees coucerned (m Gerrnany over a maxxmum of 10 years)

A total of 122 rrnlhon euros (2000 1o mrlhon euros) has been mcluded in penswn costs

- -in 2001 ‘see Note 39) and 121 mllho euros (2000 -110; mrlhon euros) in* ﬁnanc1a1 items (see

) Note 11);

The amounts recogmzed as tax prowsrons and other provrsrons are the best estimates

: of the expendrture requrred

settle the oblrgatrons Provrsrons whrch mclude mterest

: elements are d 'r:ounted to the balanee sheet date

The tax prowsrons comprrse accrued tax 11ab1ht1es and amounts set asrde for the out-

: ,‘come of external < ud1ts and: app proceed gs:’

! The sundry provasrons are in respect of 1dentrﬁab1e potermal habllmes towards third

parnes They are costed in full.

Sundry provisions

r T "ot | sales and marketing

Personnel

Production and technology

Administration

The prowsrons for the spec1al restructurmg program 1nc1ude personnel costs and the

costs of plant or busmess closures;”

(30) Provlslons for deferred tax habilines ; N FRRRE Dl ~:'
- The amounts under tl'us headmg are: in respect ofd1fferences between valuatlons in the:
consohdated balance sheet and'the tax base used by the mdmdual compames mcluded in

~the consohdatron to calculate therr taxable proflts See also Note 12 (Taxes on 1ncome)
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(31) Borrdwings

ThlS headlng includes all 1nterest bearmg obligations of the Henkel Group outstanding at
December 31 2001.

Borrowings

Dec. 31, * Residual term. - -
2000 -

more than
Total ;5 years

Bonds 1,993 L)
(including amounts secured) {0)
Participating certificates 14
Loans from employee welfare funds :
of the Henkel Group 27
(including amounts sécured) =) '
Bank loans and overdrafts 466
(including amounts secured) (20) '
Other financial liabilities 463
2,963

' The main bonds aré as follows: -

Issued by Type Denbmjnét-
ed currency

Henke! Corporation Convertible Bond v

Henket Corporation ) Eurobonds

Henke! Corporation Commercial Paper Program

Henkel Coordination Center BE Registered money market claim

Henke! Coordination Center BE Registered money market claim

o -original currancy :
' hedged:by.cross currency swap. .
¥ hedged by interest rate swaps
9" hedged. by currency Swaps
9 secured by assignment-of recexvables
The convernble bond of 77 million euros 1ssued by Henkel Corporatlon includes a call
opnon Durmg the penod frorn June: 12,2000 10 May 23 2003 the holder can have the bond
) converted 1nto preferred shares of Henkel KGaA ‘The; conversron obhgauon has been trans-
~ ferred to one of the Group s banks

Other ﬂnancral lrabrhnes mclude ﬁnance brus and mterest bearmg loans from other

. ‘thrrd partles
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Opnon rights

The bonds mc]ude S convertlble warrant bond issued on July 1, 1999 for the equivalent of
1 million euros. ThlS is m connectmn with the mtroductron of a Stock Incentlve Program for
execunve management personnel Wthh was approved at the Annual General Meemng of

Henkel KGah held | on Apnl 28:1997. Under the option terms of the warrants, the executives

mcluded in this'Stock Incentive Program have the right to acquire new preferred shares

of Heﬁkel KGaa; Thé ‘Subscriptioﬁ prices‘ depend on relative performancé, i.e. the share price
performance of Hénkel's preferred shares compared to that of the DAX German equities
index. Diviydendsvpaid,out to shareholders, pre-emptive rights and other adjustments to capi-
tal affec_tirlg the quoted price of Henkel's preferred shares are taken into account in calculat-
ing pérformance.

If the final calculation shows that no outperformance has been achieved, the subscrip-
tion rights are canceled. Noliabilities are shown in the consolidated balance sheet nor in
the balance sheet of Henkel KGaA at December 31, 2001, for the option warrants issued
under the Stock Incentive Program to date.

The Stock Incentive Program applies to about 200 executive management personnel in
the. Henkel Group.

As Henkel's preferred shares did not outperform the DAX index in the second half of
2(501 the subscrrpnon rights atta:hed to the bond issued in July 1999 have lapsed as worth-

less. The Stock Incentive Program was withdrawn and replaced in 2000 by a new Program.

Option rights under the Stock Incentive Program in force since 1997

Manage- ' - *Cther’ Total

ment Board . “‘eXecltive. . bene-

- personnel ficlaries

At January 1, 2001 52,020 - L 283,500 - 335,620
Lapsed at December 31, 2001 52,020 - . 283,500 336,520
At December 31, 2001 ‘ A o 0

Option rights under the Stock Incentive Program introduced in 2000

Manage - Total

ment Board - bene-

- ficiaries

At January 1, 2001 4,380 . 118,130
Granted in 2001 4,380 - 96,815
Withdrawn at December 31, 2001 730 24,145
At December 31, 2001 8,030 . 180,770 188,800

The objective-of this.Stock Incentive Program is to enable around 700 senior executive
personnel around the world to. share m the rise in the Henkel share price and thereby have
a direct mterest in the mcreasmg value of the Company Participants-in the scheme will

be granted opt1on rrghts witha term,of up to 5 years to subscribe for Henkel preferre{d

" shares. The program involves an annual issue on a.revolving basis, the relevant terms being

revised each year.by the Managerﬁent Board and Shareholders’ Commiittee,
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The exact number of shares which can be bought with an option depends on at least

one of two performance targets being met. One of the targets is based on absolute perform-

" .anicé (the performance of the Hex_lkel- preferred-share pfice)'and the other on relative

peérformance (comiparing the performance of Henkel's preferred shares with the Dow Jones
Stoxx ‘index). '

The notionally computed value of eva{:h option at the'balance sheet date was 97.82 euros for

. those granted in 2000 and 96.55 euros for'those granted in 2001, valuing the options granted to

(32) Trade accounts payable

members of the Management Board at 780 thousand euros and those granted to other executive

personnel at 17,566 thousand euros:

(33 ) Other liabilities

The liabilities under-this heading are all due for payment within a year.

Other liabilities .

} Dec. 31,
Residual term Residual term 2001
. more than up to more than up to Total
5years 1 year 5 years 1 year
Accounts payable to ,
affiliated companies - 17 - 24 24
Accounts payable to other
companiss in which
participations are held - 15 1 - 1 2
Liabifities in respect
of taxation - 115 - 72 72
Liabilities in respect
of social security - 45 - 31 31
Sundry liabilities
including deferred income 29 - 301 18 326 368
(including amounts secured} -
2 © 494 7 18 454 497

Sundry liabilities include: liabilities to customers 27 million euros (2000: 25 million euros),
commission payable 3 million eﬁros (2000: 17 million euros), payroll taxes etc. for employees
31 million euros {2000: 39 million euros), liabilities towards employees 90 million euros
{2000: 108 million euros), advance payments received 9 million euros {2000: 5 million euros)
and derivative liabilities l'inked‘ to foreign currency risks 70 million euros (2000:

0 million euros).
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(34) Contingent liabilities -

Contingent liabilities

Bills and notes discounted

Liabilities under guarantees and warranty agreements

Collateral

( 35 ) Other financial commitments

The amounts shown are the nominal values.

Paymént obligations under rent, leasehold and leasing agreements are shown at the
total amounts payable up to the earliest date when they can be terminated. Together with
order commitmenits fof property plant and equipment-and-raw material purchases, the
consolidated total for the Group at the end of 2001 was 139 mllllon euros (2000:

404 mtlhon euros).:

Payment commttrnents under the terms of agreements for capital increases and share

purchases signed prior to December 31, 2001 amounted to 40 million euros (2000:

47 million euros).

(36 ) Derivatives:and other financial instruments '

@‘ Annual Report 2001

_The rules conitained in IAS 39 “Financial Instrumients” were adopted for the first time in the

year ended December 31,2001. As well as affecting the accounting for all financial assets
and habrhttes the provisions of IAS 39 have changed especially the recognition and disclo-
sure of derlvattves ) o
As a general rule;all'frnaneial assets are'meastired at the current values attributable to
..them, known as their_"faifr valués”, Other investments ineluded in fixed assets and mar-
ketable securltjes included in current assets are an exception to this rule, only being shown

at. farr value if thelr market values can be rehably deterrnmed The current values of other

1nvestrnents and marketable securt "'es can only be rehably determtned if the shares or securi-

: nes ate quoted on a stock exchange ln all othier cases they ate valued at amortrzed cost

There were no materlal valuatxon ad_]usttnents resulting from the first-time.application of

- IAS 391in’ the ﬁnancral statements asof December 31, 2001 From January 1, 2002 the changes

in fair.value of 1nvestments and securmes wrth fair values whrch can be rehably determined
are recogmzed in earmngs under ﬁnancral 1tems

. Financial habrlxtres with a fixed maturity have beén valued at December 31, 2001 at
their amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. The new method of calcula-
tion affected cornmercial papers in particular. It did not result in any significant adjust-
‘ments to book values )

-Derivatives.are used for the management of currency exposure and interest rate risks

in connectron with tradrng operattons and the resultant ﬁnancmg requirements. They are
entered into solely for hedgmg purposes All the derivatives used can be. srmulated and

evaluated by. ‘olir own computer systerns As well as forward exchange contracts to hedge
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currency risks and'interest rate swaps to hedge interest rate risks, combined interest
rate/currency swaps (cross currency swaps) are also used to hedge both types of risk.
Although all'the derivatives used involve hedging specific underlying items, these are not
treated in‘the Henkel Group as fair value or cash flow hedges as defined in [AS 39. This
“means that, from’ January 1, 2002 onward, changes in the fair value of all currency hedging
" instriments as well as changes in the fair value of all hedged items are recognized in earn-
mgs in'the statement of 1ncorne

The followmg positions were held at'the balance sheet date:

Derivatives and other financial instruments

in tpal amounts' y ; Fair values

at Dscember 31 " 2001

Forward exchange contracts

(proportion for hedging financing arrangements within the Group)

Interest rate hedging instruments

Cross currency swaps"

i negat‘ive, fair value of currency hedging ¢omponents’55 rn,ill‘ion &ures, and of interest rats hedging components 7 million euros

Pnnc1pal arnounts are only netted agamst balancmg contracts when such contracts -

d 1ty and Have been’ entered into w1th the same bank.
The farr values w-rth a negatwe total of 84 rnllhon euros (2000 29 rmlllon euros) have been
arrrved at by valuxng the open contracts at market prlces at the balance sheet date,

’ Most of the forward exchange contracts are hedgrng 1nstruments matchlng the amount

E and maturlty of ﬁnancmg arrangernents w1th1n the Group The remalmng forward exchange

‘ contracts provrde forward exchange cover for recelpts and payments in forelgn currency in

\respect of sales and purchases of goods of are forward exchange contracts with.the Cognis

- group Forward exchange contracts a € generally for léss than a year meg to the first- t1me

: apphcanon of I.ASV 9 the fa1r va]ues of all forward exchange cont:racts and the fair values of

the currency hedgmg cornponents of cross currency swaps have been recogmzed in the bal

“ance sheet a. Decernber 31

{

) 1 for the ﬁrst ume Those:

th a posmve fair value are 1nclud—

ed in; “Other assets 11 m1111on euros) and those witha negatwe fair: value 1n "Other liabilis '

as assets o' l1ab111t1es has been o B

Prudent management of mterest rate exposure isan 1mportant ob)ectrve of: our ﬁnancral
o pohcy in the context of asset and 11ab1h y management Agalnst thls background weé have
. arranged part of the underlyrng borrowmg requlrements of the Henkel Group at: long term

T ﬁxed mterest rates In addmon loans ongrnally at vanable rates of mterest have been’convert-

Ceived) by denvatlve mstrurnents mto loans at fixed rates of mterest where this meaht that costs

i 'could be saved by comparrson w1th alternatxve forms of ﬁnance at the time when the transac-

( ncluded Int contrast to forward exchange contracts 1nterest rate hedgmg instru-
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ments with a negative fair value of 25 million euros at December 31, 2001 are still not Tecog-

nized in the balance sheet. The principal amounts and fair values of interest rate hedging in-
struments (mainly inteTest rate swaps)-are shown in the above table. All interest rate hedging
instrurhents are valued together with the underlying internal and external financing arrange-
ments of the Group but, §wing to differences in the dates when the interest fates on the
hedged item and on the hedging instrumeri'; ‘are due'for adjustrhent, these instruments can-
not be fully offset under IAS 39, Fluctuations in the fair values of interest rate swaps dﬁring
their lifetime are not recognized under financial items in the statement of income as required
6wing to the lack of harmonization by IAS 39 because the hedging strategy adopted in the
Hénkel Groupis to link interest rate swaps over their entire term with hedged items of at least
the same principal amount. Interest rate swaps are entered into in the Henkel Group solely for
strategic hedging purposes with the firm intention of holding them to maturity. As the fair
value of an interest rate swap is nil both at inception and on completion of the transaction,
recognizing fluctuations in fair value during its lifetime would result in valuation gains and
losses being recognized which are not in fact realized. On the basis of the fair values of the in-
terest rate hedging instruments, an amount of 25 million euros would have been charged
against equity at December 31, 2001 (see also Table on page 71).

The following interest rates have been fixed by using cross currency swaps and interest

rate hedging instruments:

Interest rates

Principal Average
amount. ; interest rate
expresséd %
in million
euros
Euros® VAR ) ! 5.4
US dollars 639 [i o idud 5.9

" including a principal'amount of 50 million euros at a cufrent interest rate of 4 percent, subject to an
interest rate cap of 5.3 percent :

. Theé use of derivatives and other financial instruments is centrally coordinated by the Cor-
porate Treasury department. Treasury control, settlement and accounting are kept physically
and organizationally sebaraté from the trading function.

As a general rule, counterparties are German and international banks of the highest
standing‘. The credit rating and performance of our counterparties are kept constantly under
review.

Since the sale of Cognis at the end of November in the year under review, the Henkel
Group's Corporate Treasury department at Henkel KGaA has continued to act for the Cognis
group, hedging its risk exposure with derivatives for a transitional period. The principal
amounts of forward exchange contracts entered into with Cognis group companies open at
the yearend totaled 163 million euros, with a negative fair value of 1 million euros, The coun-

terparty credit risk associated with the provision of these services is regarded as minimal.
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on the Statement of Income/BaIance Sheet

(37 )' Depreciation and amortization expense

{ 38 ) Cost of materials

Depreciation and amortization

2001
Scheduled depreciation and amortization s
on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 849,
Exceptional depreciation and amortization L
on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 344
Write-downs on financial assets 2

995

The increase in scheduted depreciation relative to the comparable figure for the previous
year is mainly due to the acquisitions made during the year.

The total charge for, dépféciatien anid amortization ixtcludes the exceptional write-
downs under the goodwill review program {251 million euros) and the spec1a1 restructuring

program (69 million euros).

(39) Payroll costs ™~

Cost of materials

Cost of raw materials and supplies and
of goods purchased for resate

Cost of outside services

Payroll costs

Wages and salaries

Saocial security contributions and social assistance

Pension costs
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{40 ) Employee numbers

Annual average excluding apprentices, work experience students and trainees.

Employee numbers

2001

Production and technology 26,441
Marketing, sales and distribution 18,387
Research, development and applications engineering 3,959
Administration 11,208
© 59,995

(41) Value added statemient -

f# Value added statement
3 .

% ' "2001. %
Net sales/Other income 100.0 14,422 100.0
- Cost of materials 39.4 5,535 38.4
~ Fixed asset depreciation/ .

write-ups A ’ .‘993_ 6.9
= — Other expenses 26.5 3,708 25.7
~ Value added " 20.0 4,188 29,0

Shared between: ‘ o
Employees 68.2 } 2,698 64.4
Government 10.0 499 11.9
Praviders of capital 8.6 383 8.7
Shareholders 4.1 - 156 3.7
Minority interests 1.0 ,i26 3.0
Retained in the business e 346 8.3

( 42 ) Segment information

Henkel Group which has not beeri checked by the-auditors.
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Net operating assets

alance:

Reconciliation between net operating assets/capital employed and balance sheet figures

sheet
.. figures
Annuat aver- Dec. 31, :..Dec.31; .
age" 2001 2001 " 2001 ¢
Gooduwill 2,138 1,833 el 1 ,§33 + Goodwill
Other intangible assets and property, A Other intangible assets and property,
plant and equipment (totai) 2,106 2,038 - 2,035 plant and equipment (total)
- - g2 Financial assets
- - 315 - Deferred tax assets
Inventories 1,080 1,081 15081 . Inventories
Trade accounts recsivable ) : Trade accounts recelvable
from third parties 1,638 1,591 1,591 from third parties
e _
Intra-Group trade accounts .
receivabls 381 422 . -
Other receivables and - L Other recsivables and
miscellaneous assets? 283 234 . 467 miscellansous assets
- - ;421 Liquid funds / marketable securities
Operating assets {gross) 7,628 7,196 9,365 Total assets
‘| - Operating liabilities, including: 2,158 2,408 -
Trade accounts payable Trade accounts payable
to third parties 903 937 937 to third parties J
Intra-Group trade accounts payable 381 422 =
Other provisions and liabilities? 874 1,049 ' 1,771 Other provisions and liabllities
Net operating assets 5,470 4,788 . =
~ Goodwill at bock value 2,139 1,833
+Goodwill at cost 2,903 2,686
Capital employed 6,234 5,641

" the annual average Is based on 12 monthly.figures )
2 only amounts relating to operating activities arg'taken'into account for calculating net operating assets

(43) Information on earnings per share .

Earnings per share

Earnings after minority interests

Dividends paid or proposed L
- on ordinary shares - 92
- on preferred shares 64

Profit retained . 346

Number of ordinary shares 86,598,625
EPS in euros 3.45+

Number of preferred shares® (/57,972,548;
EPS in euros )

" weighted anrjual average of preferred shares (buy-baék program)

The Stock Incéntive Progra.rri {see Note 31) does not currently result in any dilution in earnings,
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{ 44 ) Information.on the cash flow statement

Cash flow from operanng activities showed & sharp increase of 566 million euros in'the
year under review. The’ reasons for this lie prlrnarrly in a higher cash inflow due to lower
working capital and.the decrease i in tax payments. Cash flow from investing activities pro-
duced a net inflow of 1 120 million euros compared with a net outflow of 1,337 million
eurosin the prevrous year Thrs was due to'the proceeds from asset disposals as a result of
the sale of the Cognis group and of the stake in the Henkel-Ecolab joint venture, Expendi-
turé on acqursrtrons wis also'much less than in the previous year, at 361 million euros. The
funds received from. tlie disposals were used to scale down the level of borrowings, resulting
in a niet outflow of 2,052 million euros compared with an inflow of 624 million euros in the

previous year.

(45 ) Related party transactions

@aniad Annual Report 2001

Information required by § 160( ). no. 8, of the German Corporation Act (AktG):

In aletter dated Decermber.20, 2001 the Company was notified that a total of 49,246,910
voting rights, representing in total 56.87 percent of the voting rights in Henkel KGaA since
May 12, 2000, aré held by:
® 62 mernbers of the famiilies of the descendants of Fritz Henkel, the Company’s founder
® two foundations sét up by members of those families
® one civillaw partnership set up by members of those families
® set up by members of those families: 13 private limited companies, and one limited
partnership with a limrted company as general partner under the terms of an agreement re-
stricting the transfer of shares as envrsaged in§ 22( ), no. 3, of the German Securities Trad-
ing Law (WpHG) whereby the shares held by the 13 private limited companies and by the
limited parmershlp represennng 18.95 percent are attrlbuted (as envisaged in § 22(1), no. 2,
of the WpHG) to the family members who control those companies

and ' '

. jahr Vermégenétrerwaltnng GmbH & Co. KG, based in Hamburg, which has undertaken,
under the terms of an agreement concluded with the parties to the Henkel agreement re-
stricting the transfer of shares, to exercise its voting rights at the Annual General Meeting of
Henkel KGaA in concert with the parties to the Henkel agreement restricting the transfer of
shares whenever the latter have decrded to cast all their votes in the same way. Under § 22(1),
no. 3 of the WpHG this agreement means that the voting rights in Henkel KGaA held by the
parties to the Henkel agreement restricting the transfer of shares and by Jahr Vermogensver-
waltung GmbH & Co. KG are attributable to each other.

Jahr Vermégensverwaltung GmbH & Co. KG holds 4,530,000 ordinary shares in Henkel
KGaA (representing 5.23 percent of the voting capital of Henkel KGaA), thereby exceeding
the threshold of 5percent of the total voting rightsin Henkel KGaA, as does Christoph -
Henkel with voting rights attached to 5,044,139 ordinary shares in Henkel KGaA (represent-
ing a corresponding percentage of 5.825 percent). No other party to the agreement restrict-
ing the transfer of shares has 5 percent or more of the total voting rights in Henkel KGaa,
even after adding voting rights expres'sly granted under the terms of usufruct agreements.

Dipl -Ing Albrecht Woeste, Diisseldorf, is the authorized representatwe of the parties to

the Henkel agreement resmctlng the transfer of shares.




Notes to the Financial Statements

(46 } Information requlred by § 292a HGB

The conditions required by § 292a(1) of the German Commercial Code (HGB) for Henkel
KGaA s consolidated financial statements to be drawn up in accordance with International
Accountrng Standards (lAS) are fulﬁlled
: " The only accountmg pohcres apphed by Henkel wh1ch are different from those requrred
under German ¢ compary law are 1n51gn1ﬁcant in amount and relate to:
@ 'the recognition of translation differences in the statement of income;

@ . the recognmon as an assét of tax losses carried forward; and
‘e the recognition of certam derivatives in the: balance sheet at fair value.

Consohdated net earnings have beerr ohly marginally 1ncreased by currency translation differ-
“ences taken toincome asa result of forelgn currency rece1vables and payables bemg translated
“at'the closmg yearend rates of exchange,

The benefits of tax losses carrred forward are recognized as deferred tax dssets in accor-
dance.with pruderit commercial judgment only if there is evidence on the basis of business
plansor tax plannrng calculations that they will be utilized. The recognition of certain
denvatlves in the balance sheet at fair’ value has no effect on consolidated earnings of the

. Group inthe year.under review.

(47 ) Emoluments of corporate management

‘The total eroliiments (ﬁxed fee, bonus dmdend pard in 2001 and attendance fee) pald to mem-

bersof the Supemsory Board in the ﬁscal year 2001 (mcludmg value added tax taken over)
amounted to 721 thousand euros (2000 409 thousand euros):

The total of 1, 750 “value creation rlghts issued to members of the Supervisory Board had a
nil value at the balance sheet date because the condmons underlying the relevant criteria were
notall ﬁ.llﬁlled The rnernbers of the Shareholders Comrmttee recexved femunefation (ﬁxed fee
and bonus d1v1dend paid in 2001) totahng 1,475 thousand euros m the year under review (2000:
1,128 thousand euros). The total of 2, 400 value ¢reation rights issued to members of the Share-
holders Comrnlttee are valued in the same way as outlined above, The personally liable manag
ing members recewed remunerauon totahng 7 687 thousand euros in the year under review
(2000: 8,248 thousand euros) for the performance of their dunes at Henkel KGaA and at sub-
sidiaries. The ﬁgure for the year under’ review includes 423 thousand euros in respect of the
4,380 option rights’ granted to members of the Management Board under the terms of the sec-
ond (2001) tranche of the Stock lncentlve Program mtroduced in 2000. .The total value of the ob-
ligations towards members of the Management Board under the Stock Incentive Programi as of
December 31, 2001 is calculated to be 780 thousand euros (see Note 31).'42,097 thousand euros
{2000: 37 305 thousand €uros) has been provrded for penston obligations towards former mem-

“bers of the Managernent Board of Henkel KGaA and former managers of its legal predecessor
- and the1r survrvmg dependents. Amounts paid durmg the year under review totaled 5,801
. 'thousand euros (2000: 4,848 thousand euros): :

Amounts totaling 120 thousand euros were repaid during the year under review on the
two loans advanced to personally liable managmg members in previous years; one of the loans
was redeemed in full. The loan putstanding at the end of 2001 shown under the heading “Mis-
cellaneous assets» amounts.to 131 thousand euros (including interest accrued) The loan is un-
secured hés arésidual term of 11j; years and is subject to'interest at the base rate of the German

" Bundesbank W'lth amaximum of 55 percent
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" {48} Principal subsidiary companies

Inforrnation i‘eqnired by 1AS 27 to be disclosed in the Notes:

Share of Earnings.
capital before
% T tax-
Henkel Chemie Verwaltungs GmbH, Disseldorf, .
Germany 100 BN
Hans Schwarzkopt GmbH & Co. KG, Hamburg,
Germany 100 - RS P-4
Henkel Benelux Group, Brussels, Belgium, -
and Nieuwegein, Netherlands 100 402 7
Henkel France Group, B
Baulogne-Billancourt, France 100 680 -
Henkel Ltd., Hatfield, Great Britain 100 125
Henke! S.p.A., Milan, taly 100 CLT00
Henkel Central Eastern Europe Group, ' o
Vienna, Austria 100 797
Hankel Nordic Group, Stockholm, Sweden 100 153°
Henkel & Cie AG, Prattein, Switierland 100 e o110,
Henkel Ipérica, Barcelona, Spain 80 . 520 1.
Tiirk Henkel Kimya Sanaryl A.S., Istanbul, Turkey 100 B 168
QOverseas
Share of . ’ Earnings {7 Numl
capital : before . employess -
% " tax ‘Dec. 31,
Henkel Mercosul Group, S8o Paulo, Brazil 100 .-75 : 11,008
o Henksl of America Group, Gulph Mills, ‘
BRI, Pennsylvania, USA 100 4
. Henkel Asia Pacific Group, Hong Kong 100 27223,

. Majcr Parﬂcxpatlons in Assoctated Companies '

e ‘f:{ ’ The Clorox Company, akland;‘ca]'ifonnia;USAi

Product groups Househotd ctean 5 bleaches Brrta (water ﬂ!ters) Glad (plasttc packagrng products)

v Aseason products (charcoal ﬂre Iogs and starters, lnsecttcrdes) cat fitter. products automotlve care

. products, processed foods

O Henkel owns 62 8 rmlhon shares 1n The Clorox Company, which represents a participating
L mterest of 270 percent Cl _rox has worldw1de operattons ernploymg 11,000 people in the con-
“(surner goods market. Henkel and Clorox also havea technology transfer agreement. The col-

o laboratton w1th Clorox extends to the exchange of formulanons marketmg concepts and test

: methods There is also a cooperano arrangement m some countrtes (mamly in Eastern )
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.~ Europe} for the producnon and marketing of household bleachrng agents. In connection with
the sale of Cognis, the 20 percent rmnonty interest in Cognis Iberia previously held by Clorox
- was reacquired by Henkel: -
Sales were 2 percent down 1n ﬁscal 2000/2001 {accounting period to June 30, 2001) at
Uss 3 903 mtlhon Volume growth of 1 percent only partly compensated for a deterioration
of 2 percent in the price and product mix and afallof 1 percent owing to adverse exchange
rate factors Net earmngs were 18 percent down at US$ 323 mtlhon The decrease was main-

ly due to the restructurmg program announced in December 2000 for the calendar year

i2001 The total cost of the program wrll ‘bé about US$ 200 mllhon Aswell as recogrnzlng im-

~‘pairment losses on assets, it compnses wide-ranging measures to increase producnon effi-
ciency. US$ 98 rrnlhon already ‘halfithe total restructuring costs announced - had been
charged agamst income by June 30, 2001: The shareholders' equrty in the Clorox company at
June 30;.2001 arnounted 1o USS 1,900 million.

For the first half of fiscal 2001/2002 (the six-month period to December 31, 2001), Clorox
reported sales of US$ 1,892: million and halfyear earnings of US$ 130 millior. Clorox’s share
price wentup by.11.4 perc‘ent'in 2001: The market value of our participation as of December 31,
2001.aimounted to US$ 2,563 miillion.

ES

Ecolab Inc.’,St. Paul, Minnesota,‘ USA:~

Product groups: Products and sen/ice‘svfor,industria] and institutional hygiene, textile hygiene, vehicle cleaning

and autornotive care, water treatment and pest control; commercial kitchen service

Henkel owns 36,3 million shares m Ecolab Inc., representing a participating interest of
28.4 percent, Wrth about 20,000 emp]oyees EcolabInc. is wor]d market leader in the field
ofindustrial and institutional hygiene. .
With effect from December 1; 2001, Henkel transferred its 50 percent participation in
the European‘joint venture Herikel-Ecolab.to Ecolab Inc. This step has created a business
“with-worldwide operattons which is'better placed to meet the requrrements of global cus-
tomers. Ecolab Inc. now has a worldwide presence for the prowsron of products and semces
to its global customer base, The con51deranon for our share in the joint venture is 484 mil-
lion-euros. The existing stockholder. agreement between Henkel and Ecolab Inc. has also
been amended as'part of the transaction. Henkel will have an option to increase its interest
in'Ecolab Inc to 35 percent and claim an addmonal seat on the Board. When certain restric-
tions contained in the stockholder agreement have.expired; Henkel will be able to present a
takeover b1d to Ecolab’s Board of Dlrectors By purchasrng additional shares, Henkel has in-
creased its mterest in Ecolab Inc. by 3. 0 percentage peints compared with the previous year

. to the above-mentioned 28.4 percent.
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We-éxpect sales of our associate to record a modést increase in fiscal 2001, from US$
2,264 mllhon to more than US$ 2,300 mllhon Operatmg earnings will be down slightly
compared w1th the prewous year's ﬁgure of Us$.206 million.

Ecolab s share price went'down by 6.8 percent in 2001. The market value of our partici-

pation as of December 31, 2001 was US$ 1,463 million.

( 49 ) Recommendation for:abpropriation of the profit of Henkel KGaA

The personally liable managing members, the Shareholders Commiittee and the Supemsory
Board recommend that the annual financial statements of Henkel KGaA be approved as
: presented
The personally liable managmg mermbers; the ‘Shareholders’ Cornrmttee and thé Super-
. .visory Board recomménd tHat the.unappropriated profit of 190 172, 848 45-euros for the
year ended December 31 2001 be apphed as follows
. Paymer_tt of.a dividend:of 1.06 euros per ordinary share
“{on 86,598,625_ shares rankirxg for drvidend) =91,794,542.50 euros.
2. Payment of a dividend of 1,12 euros per preferred share
{on 57,586,825 shares rztnking for dividend) = 64,497,244.00 euros.
That part of the dividend payable on treasury shares acquired after December.31, 2001
. will be carried forward. - ‘

3. Allocation of the remainirig balance ef 33,881,061.95 euros to Tevenue reserves.
-Diisseldorf, February 14, 2002
The personally liable managing members of Henkel KGaA
Dr. lerich«Lehner, President and CEO
‘ . Guido De Keersmaecker
2 ‘Dr. Jochen Krautter )
.. Dr.Klaus Morwind
. ) Prof. Br. Uwe Specht

The Shareholders’ Committee

Albrecht Woeste

-(Chairman)
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Management Statement

The personally liable managing membeérs of Henkel KGaA are responsible for the content
and accuracy of the information in the consohdated financial statements and, consistent
with those statements m the management report.

The consolidated ﬁnanc1a1 statements have been prepared in conformity mth the rules
of the International Accountmg Standards Board, London, unless indicated otherwise.

Management has taken steps to-ensure the integrity of the reporting process and com-
pliance with the relevant legal regulations by establishing effective internal control systems
at.the companies wh1ch are included in the consohdated financial statements. Appropriate

trammg is provided to make sure that the.employees responsrble are suitably qualified to

‘meet the required standards. Staff training is centered around the Company’s mission

statement, and principles and strategies developed within the Company. Compliance with
these principles is monitored by management. The functional efficiency of internal control
systems is kept under constant review by the internal audit department.

These measures, coupled with internal and external reporting procedures based on

standard guidelines throughout the Group, ensure that the financial records properly

reflect all business transactions, They also enable management to recognize changes in busi-
ness circumstances and the ensuing rlsks to assets and financing arrangements as they
OCCUF. The rxsk management systems.in place for Henkel KGaA and the Henkel Group

ensure that any developments wh1ch ‘could endanger the future of Henke! KGaA or of the
Henkel Group are recogmzed in go_od trme and appropriate measures are taken accordingly.

This also provides the foundation for the accuracy of information disclosed in the consoli-

" dated financial statements and ‘Group management teport, and in the individual Company

financial statements mcorporated therein.

Management is commltted 10 delivering a steady iricrease in shareholder value,

The management of the Group is attuned to the interests of shareholders in full aware-
ness of its responsibility toward employees, society.and the envr'ronment in every country in
which Henkel operates.

In accordance with 4 resolution adopted by shareholders at the Annual General Meet-

.ing, the Supemsory Board of Henkel KGaA appomted KPMG Deutsche Treuhand-

Gesellschaft Aktlengesellschaft ertschaftspruﬁlngsgesellschaft to audit the consolidated

‘ ﬁnanc1a1 statements. The audltors réport is reproduced on the ext page. The consolidated

financial statements, the Group management report and the aidit report have been dis-

cussed in detail at a meetmg of the Supemsory Board held for that purpose. The report of

" the Supemsory Board is reproduced on page 84.

Diisseldorf, Februarj} 14,2002 -

The personally hable managmg members of
Henkel KGaA
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Audltors ‘Report

@ .Annual Report 2001

We have audited the consolidated ﬁnancral statements prepared by Henkel Kommandit-
gesellschaft auf Aktien (“Henkel") for the year ended,December 31, 2001, consrstmg of the
consohdated‘balance sheet as of that date and the related consolidated statements of in-
come;: changes in shareholders equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the ﬁnancial statemments, The preparamon and content of the consolidated financial state-
ments in conformity with International Accounting-Standards (IAS) are the responsibility
of the personally liable managing members of Henkel Kominanditgesellschaft auf Aktien.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion, based on our audit, on the consolidated finan-
cial statements.

We have conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance
with German audit regulations and the standards for the audit of financial statements
promulgated by the lnstitut der Wirtschaftsprufer IDW) generally accepted in Germany,

having due regard also for International Standards on Auditmg (ISA). Those standards

require that we plan and perform the audit so as to obtain reasonable assurance-about

“whether the consolidated financial'statements are free of material misstatement. Knowl-

edge of the business activmes and of the economic and legal environmerit in which the
Henkel Group operates, together with.the potential for possible errors, are taken into .
account in the determination of audit procedures An audit-includes examining, on a test

basm ewdence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial state-

' ments An aud1t also mcludes assessmg the accountmg prmcrples applied and significant

estimates made by the personally liable managing members aswell as evaluating the over-

“all presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that our audit provides

a reasonable basis forour opmion

With the exception of the followmg matters our audit has not given rise to any reserva-
tions:

In connection With the “Strong' for the Future” special restructuring program the
personally liable rnanaging mémbers have described and .explained i in detail the measures
planned and the amounts 1nvolved The supporting documentation is verifiable'and plaus-

ible. The provrsrons accrued totalmg 244 million eufos:include an amourit.of 160 million

. euros for which one ofthe requirements ‘0f IAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and

Contmgent Assets" 4 narnely that the measures have to be announced before the balance

".. sheet date was not fulﬁlled The personally hable managing members have assured us

“‘that the" rneasures are commumcated to employees as s0on as they have been agreed with

the employees representative bodies: -
‘As explamed in'Note 36 to the consohdated financial statements, 1AS 39 “Financial

* Instruments: Recognition and Measurement has been applied for the first time asat

. December 31, ‘2001 instead of from january 1,'2001 (the'date specified in the Standard).

Except for the: matters discugsed-dbove, inl our opinlon the consolidated financial state-

- ments give a true and fair view of: the net assets ﬁnanc1a1 position and results of opérations

of the Henkel Group, and of its cash flows for the year ‘under review, and comply with

’ Int_ernational Accountmg Standardsl
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Our. audit; which included an examination of the Group management report for the

"year ended Decemiber 31, 2001 prepared by the personally hable managing members, has

revealed no reservatlons other than those disciissed above, In our opinion the Group man-
. ' agement report gives a true picture of the Group s position overall and a fair representation

of the risks and uncertamnes that may affect its future performance We also confirm

“that the consolidated ﬁnanc1a1 statements and Group management report for the year
ended December 31, 2001 meet the requirements for exempting the Company from having
to prepare consolidated financial statements and a Group management report under

German company law,
Diisseldorf; February 14, 2002

KPMG Deutsche Treuhand-Gesellschaft Aktiengesellschaft
Wirtschaftsprﬁfurlgsgesellschaft

" Riidiger Reinke Michae} Gewehr
Wirtschaftspriifer Wirts chaftspriifer

Annual Report 2001 83




Notes to the Financial Statements

Report of the Supervnsory Board

CAt four meetlngs held during the course of fiscal 2001 as required by law and the Company's
statutes, the Supemsory Board and the Management Board focused their joint deliberations
. : on the current busmess s1tuat1on of the Group, on lmportant individual projects and
courses of action, and on strategic qQuestions. The Chau‘man of the Supervisory Board and
the Chief Executlve Officer of the Management Board have kept in constant totich with each
other for the exchange of views and ideas:
The Management Board has kept the Supervisory Board fully informed about the busi-
ness affairs of the Group by means of quarterly written reports and at the meetings of the
Supervisory Board. The sales and earnings figures of the Henkel Group as a whole and of
each business sector and geographical region have been reported on a regular basis. The
meetings were also kept fully informed about the current situation regarding the divest
ment of Cognis and about the sale of the Henkel-Ecolab joint venture to Ecolab Inc.
The following matters were discussed in detail:
shortterm and long -term corporate and financial plannmg.
human resource strategies and pohaes,
the current status of Henkel's internet activities;
approval ofa Stock Incentive Program (for 2001);
capnal expendlture and acqulsmon projects and the synergies from acquisitions;

the new structural organization of the Henkel Group. :

The annual financial statements of Henkel KGaA for the year ended December 31, 2001
arfd the management report, including the accounting records from which they were pre-
pared, have been audited By KPMG Deutsche Treuhand-Gesellschaft Aktiengesellschaft
Wirtschaftsprifungsgesellschaft, Berlin and Frankfurt/Main (“KPMG"), and givén an'unqual-
ified opinion. The consolidatéd ‘ﬁnancial statements, draﬁ up in accordance with IAS and
supplemented by a Gronp managernent report and further explanatory notes as required by
§ 252a of the German Commercial Code (HCB), have also been audited by KPMG who have
raised objections regarding the implementation of IAS 37 (announcement of restructuring
plans) and 1AS 39 (to be app]ied from January 1, 2001). KPMG report that, except for these
two objections, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the net as-
sets, financial position and results of operations of the.Group and of its cash flows for the

" year under review and cdmpiy with International Accounting Standards. As permitted by
" § 292a HGB, the consolidated financial statements for the year under review drawn up in
" accordance with IAS ekempt the.Group from having to prepare consolidated financial state-
ments under German bompany law. Al the financial statement documents and the recom-
mendation by the personally liable managing members for the appropriation of profit, as
well as the auditors’ reports, have Beén laid before the Supervisory Board. They have been
examined by the Supervisory Board and discussed in the presence of the auditors. The
Supervisory Board concurs with the auditors’ findings. Following its own examination, the
Supervisory Board adopted and approved the annual financial statements, the management
réport and the recémmendation for the appropriation of the profit for the year, as well as
the consolidated financial statements and the Group management report.
- At its meeting held on February 25,2002, the Supervisory Board approved the recom-
mendation by the personally liable managing members for the appropriation of profit,

Diisseldorf, February 25, 2002

The Supervisory Board
Albrecht Woeste

(Chairman)
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' Corporate Management

‘ pervisory Board

Albrecht Woeste Hans Dietrichs Prof. Dr. Dr. h.c. mult. Michael Vassgiliadis Brigitte Weber
! Chairman Chairman of the Works ~ Heribert Meffert Executive Secretary of Member of the Works
Privats investor Councit of Henkel University Professor 1G Bergbau, Chemie, Council of Henkel
. Genthin GmbH and Director of the In- Energie (German Min- KGaA"
Winfried Zander stitute of Marketing, ing, Chemicals and
Vice Chairman Ursula Fairchild University of Minster Energy Trade Union) Dr. Anneliese
Chairman of the Works  Private Investor Wilsch-Irrgang
Council of Henketl {to April 30, 2001) Hans Mehnert Bernhard Walter Chemist
KGaA" Member of the Former Chairman of Representative of the
Heike Hauter Works Council of Dresdnier Bank AG Senior Staff of Henkel
Dr. Simone Bagel-Trah Member of the Works Henkel KGaA" KGaAY
Biologist Council of Henkel KGaA {to July 31, 2001) Jiirgen Walter
(from April 30, 2001) {from August 1, 2001) Member of the Execu-
Prof. Dr. Dr. h.c. mult. tive Committee of IG
Dr. Ulrich Cartellieri Benedikt-Joachim Heinz Rissenhuber Bergbau, Chemie, En-
Member of the Freiherr von Herman oot Foderal Minis-  ergie (German Mining,
Supervisory Board Forester ter for Research and Chemicals and Energy
of Deutsche Bank AG Bernd Hinz Technology Trade Union)
Vice Chairman of Heinrich Thorbecke
the Works Council Private Banker
of Henkel KGaA?Y

until: July 26,2007, the joint operation of Henkel KGaA and cdgnis Deutschland GmbH

T r—

Albrecht Woeste Or. Paul Achleitner Dr. Christa Plichta Burkhard Schmidt Dr. Hans-Dietrich
Chairman Member of the Board Physician Managing Director Winkhaus
Private Investor of Allianz AG . of Jahr Former President and

. (from April 30, 2001) Dr. Woltgang .Roller Vermdgensverwaltung Chief Executive Officer
Christoph Henkel Honorary Chairman of GmbH & Co. KG of Henkel KGaA
Vice Chairman Stefan Hameimann the Supervisory Board
Private Investor Private Investor of Dresdner Bank AG

Dr. Jiirgen Manchot Dr. h.c.

Vice Chairman Ulrich Hartmann
Chemist Chairman of the Board
of EON AG

§;- Dr. Ulrich Lehner® 7% Guido De Keersmaecker" i Dr. Jochen Krautter” :
o < President and Chief Henkel Technologies : ¥" Finance a
"+ | Executive Officer t7 (to December 31, 2001: e 5 ; T I
T 5 Adhesives) 5| Dr. Roland Schulz” 4 Dr. Klaus Morwind”
R .5 Industrial and Institutional _
| Alois Linder 2 Hygiene/ 2
- Consumer and Surface Technologiss/

Craftsmen Adhesives Human Resources
(from January 1, 2002) {to December 31, 2001)

Knut Weinke
Human Resources/
Logistics

(from January 1, 2002)

A
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Operating Management of Henkel KGaA

Dr. Franz-Josef Acher Hans Van Bylen ; Wolfgang Haumann
Skincare/Oral Cars/Fra- Detergents Production
grances/Cosmetics West- Supply Chain
Dr. Ramén Bacardit ;| ern and Southern Europe
Surface Technologies (from June 1, 2001}
{from January 1, 2002)

Dr. Angela Paciello
Bodycare/Cosmetics
Central Europe

and North America

Jiirgen Seidler
Detergents International

iS¢ Isabelle Parize
Robert A, Lurcott 22 (to June 15, 2001)
Surface Technologies
(to December 31, 2001)

Dirk-Stephan Kaoedijk
Special Detergents
International

Dr. Lothar Steinebach
Finance/Contreliing

Pierre Brusselmans
Consumer and Craftsmen
Adhesives
(to December 31, 2001)
Corporate Development/
Investor Relations
(from January 1, 2002)

o P

Gabriele Weiler
Hair Care/Cosmetics
Overseas

Jean Fayolle

Industrial Adhesives

Dr. Jlirgen Maaf3
Hurmnan Resources
Management

Knut Weinke
Logistics/
Corporate Development
(to December 31, 2001)

. Hélnrich Grﬁn
Engineering Adhesives

Giacomo Archi i Attilio Gatti Frank Rainer Menzel Aloys Schmeken
Faruk Arig Pierre Gibaud Dr. Bernhard Mergler Dr. Matthias Schmidt
Dr. Karl Gladt Stephen Merkei Heinrich Schneider
Dr. Ramén Bacardit Viviane Godin-Verleye Hanno-Hagen Mistzner Dr. Hans-Willi Schroiff
Alain Bauwens Ralf Grauel David C. Minshaw Peer Schum
Pietro Beccari Paulo Hisato Mizukami Dr. Klaus Schumann
Klaus Hermann Behrens Ernst Hacke! Eric Mcley Michael Schwesig
Francesc Beltran Rainer Haertel Dr. Jean Pierre de Montalivet Joachim Speisebscher
Marc Benoit Thorsten Hagenau Robert Muir Dr. Friedrich Stara
Antonio Beraza Ferdinand Harrer Georg Millier Bart Jan Steenken
Kari Bethell Ludger Hazelaar Dr. Heinrich MUller Dr. Walter Sterzel
Wolfgang Beynio R. Enric Holzbacher Dr. Thomas Miller-Kirschbaum  Stefan Sudhoff
Patrick Blum Michael Horstmann Rolf Manch
Dr. Alexander Boeck Dr. Stefan Huchler Dr. Boris Tasche
Dr. Bernard Joseph Bolger Christoph Neufeldt Jan Teerlinck
Wiltsm Boomsluiter Dr. Jochen Jacobs Alain Niccolai Herman Ter Haar
Robert Bossuyt Theo Janschuk Frank-Rainer Nitschke Gunter Thumser
Dr. Cari Braun Or. Karl-Heinz Jastram Helmut Nuhn Thomas Ténnesmann
©.wnf D Andreas Bruns Edward L. Jozwiak Rainer Tschersig
L - Eberhard Buse Michae! Ogrinz
S John M. Kahl ' Robert Uytdewillegen
Marco Cassoli . Heinz Kammermeler Dr. Can Paker
Miche! Charuel Peter Kardorff Luis Palau Aimenar Danny van der Sande
Dindar Ciftcioglu Adetheid Kiahold Norbert Pestka Dr. Vincenzo Vitelli
Michas! Clarkson Dr. Wolfgang Kiauck Bruno Piacenza Ramon Viver
Dister Claus Klaus Kleine Herzbruch Arnd Picker Dr. Rainer Vogel
Julian Colquitt John Knudson Kenneth Pifia Dr. Dirk Vollmerhaus
Bertrand Conquerst Erdem Kocak Ingomar Poppek
Francisco Cornellana Gerald Kohlsmith Dr. Christian Poschik Kim Walker
Roberto Croce Wolfgang Krey Dr. Wolfgang PreuB Bernd Wasserrab
Jesus Cuadrado Dr. Werner Krisger Ernst Primosch Dr. Jirgen Wegner
Monika Krug Dr. Volker Puchta Claus Weigandt
John Davidson Klaus Dieter Weyers
Paul De Bruecker Luis Carlos Lacorte Reinhold Raschkowski Dr. Winfried Wichelhaus
Denis Claude De Gersigny Jean Marc Lagoutte Dr. Michael Reuter Dr. Hans-Christof Wilk
Peter Dowling Arnaud Landon Robert Risse Dr. Rudolf Wittgen
Uwe Drews Andreas Lange Peter Ruiner Reinhard Wolfertz
Kenneth Lehman
Wolfgang Eichstaedt Titwin Lepsius Claire Salmon-Legagnreur Daniel Ypersiel
Dr. Horst Elerdanz Alois Linder Satish Kumar Erdogan Yumuk
Stephen Ellis Sammy Loutfy Wolfgang Schéufele
Marcelo Estivill Albrecht Scheel Peter Zimmel
Assuero Mancini Wolfgang Scheiter
Franz-Otto Fell Dr. Klaus Marten Gerhard Schlosser
Vladimiro Frigeri Lutz Mehihorn Rolf Schlus As at December 31, 2001
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Corporate Management

Membership of other sgpérvisory and corporate managément bodies required to be disclosed under

§ 125(1) No. 3 of the Géi'man Corporation.Act (AktG)

Supervisory Board -

Albrecht Woeste, Chairman:

Deutsche Bank AG; Allianz’Lebensvers.‘AG;
R. Woeste & Co, GmbH & Co. KG; IKB-
Deﬁtsche Industriekreditbank AG;
Investitions-Bank NRW

Dr. Ulrich Cartellieri:
‘Robert Bosch GmbH; Deutsche Bank AG,
BAEF Systems plc., Great Britain

Ursula Fairchild (to April 30, 2001}):
Henkel of America Inc., USA;
Henkel Corp., USA

Benefiikt—]oachim Freiherr von Herman:

Holzhof Oberschwaben G

Prof. Dr. Dr. h.c. mult. Heribert Meffert:
Kaufthof Warenhaus AG; Kiekert AG;
BASF Coatings AG; F-LOG AG

Prof. Dr. Dr. h.c. mult. Heinz Riesenhuber:

Altana AG; Evotec BioSystems AG (Chair-

man); Frankfurter Allgemeine Zeitung

GmbH; Osram GmbH; Portum AG; Vodafone

AG; HBM BioVentures AG, Switzerland

Sharehaolders’ Committes

" Heinrich Thorbecke, Banker:

Bank Thorbecke AG, Switzerland; Intervalor
Holding AG, Switzerland; In Gassen Immo-

bilien AG, Switzerland

Michael Vassiliadis:

mg technologies ag; Preussag Energie GmbH

Bernhard Walter:

Bilfinger + Berger Bauaktiengesellschaft KG;
DaimlerChrysler AG; Deutsche Telekom AG,
mg technologies ag; Staatliche Porzellan-
Manufaktur Meissen GmbH; Thyssen Krupp
AG; Allgemeine Leasing GmbH & Co. (Chair
man of the Board), Wintershall AG (Vice

Chairman)

Jiirgen Walter:
BASF AG; BASF Schwarzheide GmbH;
Trienekens AG; RWE Umwelt AG

Albrecht Woeste, Chairman:

{see Supervisory Board)

Christoph Heﬁkel, Vice Chairman:
Henkel Corp;, USA; Cineville Inc., USA;
The Clorox Compapy' USA; Head NV,
Netherlands

Dr. Jiirgen Manchot, Vice Chairman:
LTS Lohmann Therapie-Systeme AG;
Lohmann GmbH & Co. KG ‘
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Corporate Management

‘Dr. Paul Achleitner, (from April 30, 2001}:

MAN AG; RWE AG; Allianz Europe Ltd.,
Netherlands; Allianz Finance B.V., Nether-

lands; Allianz Finance II BV, Netherlands;
Allianz of America Corp., USA! Allianz of

America Inc., USA; A.C.LF. SpA, Italy (Chair-
man); OlAG, Austria

Stefan Hamelmann:

Ecolab Inc., USA

Dr. h.c. Ulrich Hartmann:
Minchener Rilckversicherungs-Gesellschaft
AG (Chairman); RAG Aktiengesellschaft

. (Chairman); Deutsche Lufthansa AG;

Hochtief AG; IKB Deutsche Industriebank
AG (Chairman)

-

Management Board of Henkel KGaA

Board mandates: E.ON Energie AG (Chair-

. man); VEBA OEL AG {Chairman)

Dr. Wolfgang Réler:
Heidelberger Zement AG {Chairman)

Burkhard Schmidt:
Lycos Europe N.V.

Dr. Hans-Dietrich Winkhaus:

BMW AG; Degussa AG; Deutsche Lufthansa

AG; Deutsche Telekom AG (Chairman); Ergo
Versicherungsgruppe AG; Schwarz-Pharma

AG (Chairman)
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Dr. Ulrich Lehner™;
Ecolab Inc., USA; Dresdner Bank Luxembiirg

S.A., Luxembourg

Guido De Keersmaecker™
Henkel Belgium S.A., Belgium; Henkel
Nederland B.V,, Netherlands

Dr. Jochen Krautter":

Dresdner Bank Lateinamerika AG,; BASF
Coatings AG; Henkel China Investment Co.
Ltd., China; Henkel Corp., USA; Henkel of
America, Inc., USA

Alois Linder:
Henkel Corp., USA

Dr. Klaus Morwind
The Clorox Company, USA; Henkel Central

Eastern Europe Ges.mbH, Austria; Henkel

Ibérica S.A, Spain; Henkel SpA, Italy; Henkel
‘Hellas S.A., Greece

Dr. Roland Schulz® (to December 31, 2001}
Parion Finanzholding AG;
Henkel Teroson GmbH (Board mandate);

Henkel Norden AB, Swecien

Prof. Dr. Uwe Specht™:
Surplex AG, Henkel & Cie AG, Switzerland

Knut Weinke {from January 1, 2002):
Henkel Belgium S.A,, Belgium; Henkel
France S.A. France; Henkel Nederland BV,
Netherlands; Henkel Norden AB, Sweden;
cechemplorer limited, Ireland; CPGmarket,

Switzerland

” Personally Liable Managing Member




Ten-Year Summary

Sales 't 713,080
Operating profit 1,210
Earnings before o
taxes on income 1,059
Net earnings .- 541 v
Total assets 9,365
Fixed assets 5,490
Current assets s
(incl. deferred tax) 3,875
Debt 5,761,
Sharehclders’ o
squity * 3,604
-as % of .
total assets ©.38.5
Net return on :
sales (%) * 4.1
Return on o
equity (%) ? -15.5
Dividend per
ordinary share
(in euros) '1.069
Dividend per
preferred share -
(in euros) ;1,129
Total dividends . 1567
Borrowings: S
EBITDA 1120
Capital expenditures . 1,375
Investment ratic (%) 10.5
Research and
development costs 343
- Number of
: emplayees
(annual average)
-~ Germany 015,199
- Abroad ‘ 277 1. 127,0: 615 5 067 | 44,786
Total 42,1961, 40,470 | 40,590 141,728 - "4 375311 56,2911 +566/620 %, 60:475| 59,096

incl. participating certificates and participating loans up to 1996 - 2 net earnings + sales

® net earnings + average equity capital over the year (equity capital at beginning of year since 1997) - *at January 1, 1993
adjusted to show operating profit after charging restructuring costs

578 million euros including gain from sale of GFC shareholding (Degussa)

excluding gain from sale of GFC shareholding (Degussa) - ®proposed - “excluding exceptional items

including employees of the Cognis and Henkel-Ecolab joint venture businesses sold
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The Shareholders of our Company are hereby invited to attend the

Annual General Meeting

to be held on

Monday, May 6, 2002 at 10.00 a.m.

in the Stadthalle Disseldorf, CCD-South entrance, Congress Center
Disseldorf, Stockumer Kirchstrasse 61, 40474 Dusseldorf.

This English text is a translation for information only and the original
German text published in the German Federal Gazette (Bundesanzeiger) No.
60/2002 of March 27, 2002 is the only authoritative version.




2.

AGENDA

Presentation of the annual financial statements and the
consolidated financial statements, the combined Management
Report of the Company and of the Group, and the report of the
Supervisory Board for the year ended December 31, 2001.
Resolution to approve the annual financial statements of
Henkel KGaA for the year ended December 31, 2001

The Personally Liable Partners, the Shareholders' Committee and the
Supervisory Board propose that the annual financial statements be
approved as presented and that the amount of EUR 184,312,413.93 be
allocated to revenue reserves out of the net profit of
EUR 368,624,827.87. Together with the balance of EUR 150,527.96
brought forward from the previous year and the amount of
EUR 5,709,906.55 transferred from the reserve for treasury stock, the
unappropriated profit is EUR 190,172,848.45.

Resolution for the appropriation of profit

The Personally Liable Partners, the Shareholders' Committee and the
Supervisory Board propose that the unappropriated profit of
EUR 190,172,848.45 for the year ended December 31, 2001 be applied
as follows:

a) Payment of a dividend of
EUR 1.06 per ordinary share
(on 86,598,625 shares ranking for
dividend at December 31, 2001)

b) Payment of a dividend of
EUR 1.12 per preferred share
(on 57,586,825 shares ranking for
dividend at December 31, 2001)

The part of the dividend attributable to
ordinary or preferred treasury stock acquired
after December 31, 2001 will be carried forward.

c) Allocation of the remaining amount EUR 33,881,061.95
to revenue reserves

EUR 91,794,542.50

EUR 64,497,244.00

= EUR 190,172,848.45




Resolution to ratify the actions of the Personally Liable Partners

The Personally Liable Partners, the Shareholders' Committee and the
Supervisory Board propose that the actions of the Personally Liable
Partners be ratified for the year ended December 31, 2001.

Resolution to ratify the actions of the Supervisory Board

The Personally Liable Partners, the Shareholders' Committee and the
Supervisory Board propose that the actions of the members of the
Supervisory Board be ratified for the year ended December 31, 2001.

Resolution to ratify the actions of the Shareholders' Committee

The Personally Liable Partners, the Shareholders' Committee and the
Supervisory Board propose that the actions of the members of the
Shareholders' Committee be ratified for the year ended December 31,
2001.

Appointment of auditors for fiscal 2002

The Supervisory Board proposes that KPMG Deutsche
Treuhandgesellschaft Aktiengesellschaft Wirtschaftsprifungs-
gesellschaft, Berlin and Frankfurt am Main, be appointed auditors for
the fiscal year 2002.

Resolution to authorize the purchase of own shares ("treasury
stock")

The Personally Liable Partners, the Shareholders’ Committee and the
Supervisory Board propose the following resolution:

The Personally Liable Partners are hereby authorized in accordance
with § 71(1) no. 8 of the German Corporation Act (AktG) to purchase
ordinary and preferred shares of the Company, not exceeding 10% in
total of the capital stock, at any time up to November 6, 2003.
Purchases will be made in the market or by means of a public offer
addressed to all shareholders. The consideration paid by the Company
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for each share purchased in the market must not be more than 5%
above or below the opening price of the shares quoted on the XETRA
trading system (the electronic securities trading system operated by
Deutsche Boérse AG) or a comparable successor system on the date of
the purchase. In the case of a public offer the consideration paid by the
Company for each share must not be more than 5% above or below the
average of the closing prices quoted for the Company's shares of the
same class on the XETRA trading system or a comparable successor
system on the last five trading days prior to the announcement of the
offer. This authorization can be exercised in instalments. The
Company will decide on the class of shares to be purchased taking the
interests of shareholders and of the Company into account and having
due regard for the purposes of the transaction.

The Personally Liable Partners are hereby authorized — subject to the
approval of the Shareholders' Committee and of the Supervisory Board
— to dispose of any treasury stock purchased, without first offering such
stock to existing shareholders, by (i) offering and transferring the
shares to members of the Management Board and certain executive
management personnel of the Company and to members of the
Management Boards and certain executive management personnel of
certain affiliated companies in Germany and abroad under the current
terms of the "Stock Incentive Program of the Henkel Group" which was
approved by resolution of shareholders at the Annual General Meeting
held on May 8, 2000, or (ii) selling or otherwise transferring them to
third parties for the purpose of acquiring businesses, parts of
businesses or participating interests in businesses or for forming
business combinations. Insofar as members of the Management Board
of the Company are among those eligible to participate in the Stock
Incentive Program, the Shareholders' Committee is hereby authorized —
subject to the approval of the Supervisory Board — to arrange the offer
and transfer of the shares.

The Personally Liable Partners are also hereby authorized — subject to
the approval of the Shareholders’ Committee and of the Supervisory
Board — to cancel all or part of the treasury stock without any further
resolution in General Meeting being required.

The authorization to purchase the Company's own shares ("treasury
stock") approved by resolution of shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting held on April 30, 2001 is withdrawn with effect from the date
when the new authorization becomes operative.
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The other authorizations granted on May 8, 2000 and April 30, 2001
(namely to dispose of treasury stock purchased under the
authorizations to purchase the Company's own shares granted on
May 8, 2000 and April 30, 2001, without first offering such stock to
existing shareholders, by (i) offering and transferring the shares to
members of the Management Board and certain executive
management personnel of the Company and to members of the
Management Boards and certain executive management personnel of
certain affiliated companies in Germany and abroad under the terms of
the "Stock Incentive Program of the Henkel Group", or (ii) selling them
to third parties for the purpose of acquiring businesses, parts of
businesses or participating interests in businesses or for forming
business combinations, or finally (iii) to cancel treasury stock without
any further resolution in General Meeting being required) shall remain
in force.

Amendment of the "Stock Incentive Program of the Henkel Group™

The Personally Liable Partners, the Shareholders' Committee and the
Supervisory Board propose the following resolution:

The terms and conditions of the "Stock Incentive Program of the Henkel
Group“ approved at the Annual General Meeting held on May 8, 2000
are hereby amended for stock options issued from 2002 onwards:

The period of 60 consecutive stock exchange trading days at present
required for determining the exercise price and the performance of
Henkel shares is reduced to 20 consecutive stock exchange trading
days. The same applies to the period required for calculating the
beginning and end of the three-year holding period for exercising the
stock options, the end of the five-year lifetime of the stock options, and
the three-year holding period for the direct investment to be made by
eligible participants in Groups 1, 2 and 3.

Instead of the trading window of 28 calendar days immediately
following the dates for publication of Henkel KGaA's results during
which time those entitled can exercise their stock options, the stock
options are to be exercisable at any time after the end of the holding
period until they expire. The only exception to this is the period of four
weeks immediately preceding the dates when the Company's results
are to be published. The relevant dates for the results of Henkel KGaA
are the dates for publication of the preliminary report for the fiscal year,
the interim report for the first half of each year, the quarterly reports
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through March 31 and September 30 each year, and the date on which
the Annual General Meeting is held. Subject to the approval of
optionholders, the amendments to the conditions for exercising the
options are also to apply to stock options already issued under the
existing terms of the Program in 2000 and 2001.

The other terms and conditions of the Stock Incentive Program remain
unchanged.

Report to the Annual General Meeting regarding
items 7 and 8 on the Agenda, as required by

§ 71(1) no. 8 and § 186(4), sentence 2, of the
German Corporation Act (AktG)

The authorization to purchase own shares (“treasury stock") proposed
under item 7 is similar to the resolution which was passed at the
Annual General Meeting held on April 30, 2001 under item 8 on the
Agenda at that Meeting. The authorization to purchase the Company's
own shares which was approved at that Meeting is only valid until
October 30, 2002. It therefore needs to be renewed, together with the
authorizations to dispose of the shares in other ways in accordance
with § 71(1) no. 8, sentence 5, of the German Corporation Act (AktG)
and the authorization to cancel them in accordance with § 71(1) no. 8,
sentence 6, of the German Corporation Act. The authorization to
exclude the pre-emptive rights of existing shareholders has to be
renewed in order to be able to transfer the shares purchased to
members of the Management Board and certain executive
management personnel of the Company and to members of the
Management Boards and certain executive management personnel of
certain affiliated companies in Germany and abroad under the terms of
the "Stock Incentive Program of the Henkel Group" or to transfer them
to third parties as consideration for acquiring businesses, parts of
businesses or participating interests in businesses or for forming
business combinations. The class of share to be used for this purpose
will depend on the terms of the transaction concerned.

International competition and the globalization of business are
increasingly demanding a company's own stock to be used as
consideration for the acquisition of other businesses, parts of
businesses or participating interests in businesses or for forming
business combinations. The authorization proposed here for
transferring the shares purchased is therefore intended to give the
Company the necessary flexibility to be able to make the most of
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opportunities to acquire businesses or participating interests therein
rapidly and in a flexible manner as they arise. This is another reason
why the proposed authorization to exclude the pre-emptive rights of
existing shareholders is reasonable and in the interests of the
Company.

At the same time the proposal is made under item 8 to amend the
terms and conditions of the "Stock Incentive Program of the Henkel
Group" approved at the Annual General Meeting held on May 8, 2000
for stock options issued from 2002 onwards. The amendments relate
to the definition of the period for determining the exercise price, the
performance periods | and Il, the holding period and lifetime of the
stock options, the holding period for the direct investment to be made
by eligible participants in Groups 1, 2 and 3, and the exercise options.

Whether performance targets are met is determined under the existing
terms and conditions by comparing the average market prices of the
shares over the first 60 stock exchange trading days immediately
following the date when the Annual General Meeting of the Company
was held in the calendar year in which the stock option was issued
(performance period 1) and over the first 60 stock exchange trading
days immediately following the date when the Annual General Meeting
of the Company is held in the third calendar year after the stock option
was issued (performance period 1l). The average share price
determined in performance period | is also the exercise price. The
period of 60 stock exchange trading days required in each case for
determining the exercise price and whether performance targets are
met is longer than in the equivalent programs of most other companies
and has also proved to be inappropriate.

Shortening the length of the period in each case enables the exercise
price to be determined more quickly and therefore stock options to be
issued sooner after the Annual General Meeting. Performance targets
can also be calculated relatively quickly after conclusion of the Annual
General Meeting of the Company. The relevant periods, including the
holding period for direct investment, are therefore now to be shortened
to a standard 20 stock exchange trading days.

In addition the existing rule governing the exercise of the stock options
during their lifetime is to be made more flexible. Instead of the existing
"trading window" of 28 calendar days immediately following the dates
for publication of the Company's results during which time the options
can be exercised, the stock options are now to be exercisable at any
time after the end of the holding period until they expire. The only time
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when they are not allowed to be exercised is to be the period of four
weeks immediately preceding the dates when the results of
Henkel KGaA are to be published. This means that participants will be
able to exercise their options in accordance with their own
requirements. This makes no difference, however, to the fact that the
regulations governing the statutory prohibition on insider trading
continue to apply to every participant in the same way as before. In
order to standardize the exercise of stock options, the amendments to
the conditions for exercising them are also to apply — subject to the
approval of optionholders — to stock options already issued in 2000 and
2001.

The above measures are intended to increase the attractions and
acceptance of the Program.

Approval of controlling and profit transfer agreemehts with
subsidiary companies

The controlling and profit transfer agreements referred to below have
been concluded between Henkel KGaA and the following wholly-owned
non-trading subsidiaries:

1. Henkel Erste Verwaltungsgesellschaft mbH, Disseldorf
2. Henkel Chemie Verwaltungsgesellschaft mbH, Dusseldorf

Copies of these enterprise agreements, the annual financial statements
and management reports of the contracting companies for the fiscal
years 1999, 2000 and 2001, and the joint reports of the Management
Boards of the participating companies and the Personally Liable
Partners of Henkel KGaA on the enterprise agreements, are available
for inspection at the offices of Henkel KGaA and will be sent to any
shareholder free of charge on request. The above-mentioned
documents are also available on the internet (www.ir.henkel.de;
www.ir.henkel.com).

The main terms of the agreements are as follows:

The subsidiary companies submit the direction of the company to
Henkel KGaA, thereby giving Henkel KGaA the authority to issue
instructions. The subsidiary companies undertake to transfer their
entire profit to Henkel KGaA. Henkel KGaA in turn undertakes to
compensate any annual net losses of these subsidiary companies in
accordance with the provisions contained in § 302 of the German
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Corporation Act (AktG). Income arising from the release of revenue
reserves established by the subsidiary companies prior to signature of
the agreements is not to be transferred. New revenue reserves can be
established to the extent that this is commercially justified on the basis
of sound business judgment. The agreements are signed with effect
from January 1, 2002 and can be terminated by three months' notice at
the end of a fiscal year, but not before December 31, 2006.

The Personally Liable Partners, the Shareholders' Committee and the
Supervisory Board propose that the controlling and profit transfer
agreements between Henkel KGaA on the one hand and Henkel Erste
Verwaltungsgesellschaft mbH, Ddusseldorf, and Henkel Chemie
Verwaltungsgesellschaft mbH, Dusseldorf, on the other hand be
approved.

10. Election to the Shareholders' Committee

Dr. Wolfgang Réller has resigned as a member of the Shareholders’
Committee with effect from the end of the Annual General Meeting
owing to having reached the prescribed age limit. The Shareholders'
Committee proposes that Mr. Karel Vuursteen, Chief Executive Officer
of Heineken N.V., Amsterdam, the Netherlands, be elected to replace
him as a member of the Shareholders' Committee for the remainder of
his term of office.

Arrangements for depositing share certificates

Holders of ordinary shares and of non-voting preferred shares will be entitled
to attend the Annual General Meeting and to exercise voting rights to which
they are entitled as ordinary shareholders and to make proposals, provided
they deposit their share certificates by April 29, 2002 at the Company's
cashier's office, with a German notary, at a bank acting as a central depositary
for securities, or at one of the banks listed below, and leave them there until
the end of the Annual General Meeting:

Deutsche Bank AG
Dresdner Bank AG

Share certificates will be deemed to have been duly deposited with one of the
above-named depositaries if they are held by a bank with the agreement and
on behalf of a depositary until the end of the Annual General Meeting.
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»

If share certificates are deposited with a German notary or at a bank acting as
a central depositary for securities, we ask that a document certifying such
deposit be lodged with the Company not later than 24 hours after the last date
by which the share certificates have to be deposited.

Shareholders can have their voting rights exercised at the Annual General
Meeting by a proxy or through a shareholders' association.

The Personally Liable Partners shall not be obliged to circularize any
proposals or nominations made by shareholders as required by § 125 et seq

of the German Corporation Act unless the shareholders concerned prove their
identity as shareholders in good time.

Dusseldorf, March 2002

The Personally Liable Partners




